AGENDA
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING-BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TRAVERSE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Tuesday, August 27, 2019
8:00 AM

1). Call to order — Alan Veflin

2). Approval of Agenda ***

3). Approval of Minutes and Bills ***

4). Basin & East River Video Reports

5). East River Monthly Board Report - Pat Homan
6). MREA New Director Orientation — Tom Frisch

7). MREA Board Chair Round Table — Alan Veflin

8). MREA Energy Issues Summit (EIS) - Russell Armstrong, Michael Marks

10 Minute Break

8). General Manager’s Report — Joel Janorschke
1. MN Legislation Update
2. SD Legislation Update
3. Solar

9). Office Manager’s Report — Karen Lupkes
1. July 31, 2019 Accounts Receivable Balances review
2. REMA Finance Managers Meeting
3. Dairyland begins bill printing & mailing with August statement
4. Credit/debit card payment and online/mobile access volume update
5. Attended the Summer REMA Finance Managers Conference

10). Financial Report — Karen Lupkes
a. Profit & Loss Statement & Form 7***
b. Comparison

11). Operation Manager’s Report — Dale Schwagel
1. Operations update
2. Outage update
3. AMI update

12). Review Board Policy 509 Nepotism***

13). Basin 2020 Load Forecast***



AGENDA
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING-BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TRAVERSE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Tuesday, August 27, 2019
8:00 AM

14). Executive Session

15). Other Business
Meetings:
¢ East River Annual Meeting — September 4, 2019 (9:45 am)
e Basin Annual Meeting — November 5-7, 2019
e Mid-West Annual Meeting — December 10-11, 2019

16). Adjournment ***

**#* Indicates Board Action needed

Future Directors Meetings
East River Annual Meeting — September 4, 2019 - Sioux Falls, SD (Armstrong - Delegate, Pearson, Veflin - Alternate)
Basin Annual Meeting — November 5-7, 2019 — Bismarck, ND
Mid-West Annual Meeting - Dec 10-12, 2019 — Denver, CO
SDREA Annual Meeting - January 10-11, 2020 - Pierre, SD
MREA Annual Meeting - March 17-18, 2020 - St. Paul, MN
TEC Annual Meeting - March 19, 2020 - Wheaton High School - Wheaton, MN

Future Managers Meetings
East River Annual Meeting - September 4, 2019 - Sioux Falls, SD

REMA CEO Meeting - September 4 - 6, 2019 - Ottertail, MN
NRECA Region 5 & 6 Meeting — Sept. 10-11, 2019 — Milwaukee, W1
East River MAC - October 1, 2019 — Madison, SD
Basin Annual Meeting — November 5-7, 2019 — Bismarck, ND
East River MAC - November 15, 2019 — Madison, SD
MREA Legislative Summit — November 22, 2019 — Maple Grove, MN
East River MAC - December 2, 2019 - Madison, SD
Mid-West Annual Meeting — Dec 10-12, 2019 — Denver, CO
NRECA CEO Close-Up - January 12-15, 2020 — Palm Desert, California
SDREA Annual Meeting - January 10-11, 2020 - Pierre, SD
MREA Annual Meeting - March 17-18, 2020 - St. Paul, MN
TEC Annual Meeting - March 19, 2020 - Wheaton High School - Wheaton, MN

Future Board Meeting Dates
September 24, 2019 - Scheduled for 8:00 am
October 29, 2019 - Scheduled for 9:00 am
November 26, 2019 - Scheduled for 9:00 am
December 31, 2019 — Scheduled for 9:00 am

Future NRECA Annual Meeting Dates




AGENDA
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING-BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TRAVERSE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Tuesday, August 27, 2019
8:00 AM
2020 - New Orleans - February 27 — March 4-Marks, Veflin, Vacant
2021 - San Diego - February 18 - 24 — Kath, Homan

2022 - Nashville - March 3-9 — Diekmann, Armstrong
2023 - Orlando - March 9 — 15- Pearson, Monson



REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING-BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TRAVERSE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Tuesday, July 23, 2019
8:00 AM

The July monthly meeting of the Board of Directors of Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc. was
held at the office of the Cooperative on Tuesday, July 23, 2019.

President Veflin called the meeting to order.

The Secretary reported the following directors present:

Alan Veflin Karen Kath Pat Homan
Mark Pearson Michael Marks Russ Armstrong
Doug Diekmann Tom Frisch Terry Monson

Absent was: None.
Staff members attending the meeting were Joel Janorschke and Karen Lupkes.

Armstrong made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Monson seconded the motion and
upon vote, motion carried unanimously.

The minutes from the June Board of Directors meeting and the bills for June were presented.
Homan made a motion to approve the minutes and the June bills. Pearson seconded the motion
and upon vote, motion carried unanimously.

The East River video was not viewed.

Homan reported on the East River board meeting:
e SPP line improvements were discussed.
There was copper theft from a substation.
Basin rate reduction.
Annual meeting will be September 3-4.
Ethanol plants can get more per gallon by reducing carbon.
The general manager review was completed.
The joint defense agreement was discussed.
Legislative updates were given and territory issues discussed.

Armstrong and Marks reported on the District III meeting they attended. Topics at the meeting
included:

REPAC donating more to Representatives

The Governor’s push to 50% renewables by 2050.

Focus on job safety

CFC candidates spoke



e Darrick Moe spoke about the electric grid.
e MN Legislative update. A property tax on distribution poles was defeated.

Manager Janorschke presented the Manager’s Report:
e Updated the board on the East River MAC meeting. Topics included:
1. East River purchased a mobile substation.
2. A WAPA employee discovered copper theft while doing routine substation inspection.
3. A committee was formed to work on the Power Factor Policy and penalties.
Janorschke is a member of the committee.
4. EPA’s ACE rule finalized and will replace the Clean Energy Plan.
5. Sylvia Walters from Pipestone System spoke.
6. East River is working on a special electric vehicle rate.
7. The Joint Defense Agreement was discussed and it is expected that all co-ops will sign
the agreement except for the two co-ops wanting to leave East River.
8. Member activism was discussed along with the importance of transparency. Most of
the items noted are now available on our website.
9. East River will likely be going away from offering appliance rebates in 2020.
e Updated the board on the Basin MAC meeting recently held in Deadwood, SD. Topics
included:
1. Basin will adding a total of 300 MW of solar split between two sites.
2. The lease for the Antelope Valley Station is ending.
3. Reviewed Basin’s load forecast and end of year projections.
4. Rates will remain stable. Basin is planning to implement a rate decrease or bill credit.
e SD legislative update on the status of the territory issue.
e MN legislative update including Governor Walz’s push to be 100% carbon free by 2050.

Lupkes presented the Office Manager’s Report:
e June 30, 2019 Accounts Receivable balances were reviewed.
e All board policies are on the board intranet.
¢ Dairyland Power will begin printing and mailing our billing statements and past due
notices with our August 31 bill statements.

Lupkes presented the financial report. June sales and margins were discussed. Margins were
affected by a considerable decrease in sales to Kinder Morgan and the Graceville elevator site,
and the payment for our annual pole testing. After a discussion on the monthly comparisons and
financial status of the Cooperative, Diekmann made a motion to accept the report as given.
Marks seconded the motion, and upon vote motion carried unanimously.

Miranda Wendlandt from our auditor’s office, CliftonLarsonAllen, joined the meeting to review
the annual audit report. She reviewed the audit process, what they look for, and that they
implement a new item to test every year. This year they looked at the electric accounts of
employee-members for any unusual activity or discrepancies with none being found. They
issued a clean audit report with an unmodified opinion and no audit adjustments. The balance
sheet was reviewed, questions answered, and compared Traverse Electric to other MN
Cooperatives and East River Cooperatives. Monson made a motion to approve the audit report.



Kath seconded the motion and upon vote motion carried unanimously.

Janorschke gave the Operations Report.

e Outages were reviewed.
Crews have been fixing urd faults.
Projects were reviewed. The ditch widening projects were discussed.
There has been an increase in the number of requests for tile pump services this year.
The RV campground on Lake Traverse is expanding and adding 88 lots.
We have one person from Chapman changing out our meters. We will request to have 2
people from Chapman and one or two of our employees also changing meters when time
allows.

The board reviewed and discussed the revisions to Policy 307 Energy Efficiency, Conservation,
and Generator Programs. The revision was necessary to update our rebate program to correlate
with East River’s rebate policy. Frisch made a motion to approve the following revisions to
Policy 307:

TRAVERSE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Wheaton, Minnesota
BOARD POLICY NO. 307

Energy Efficiency, Conservation, and Generator Programs

I. OBJECTIVE

To establish an energy efficiency and conservation program with incentives that will
encourage members of Traverse Electric to purchase and install Energy Star appliances, heating
systems, lights, motors, and crop drying equipment. And to also promote the purchase of
generators through our Generator Program.

I ERRG sTAR HEAT ELECTRIC ROL 1Y,
ELECTRIC HEATING SYSTEMS-RESIDENTIAL (Single family, Condos,

Townhomes, and Duplexes)

A. Traverse Electric will offer incentives and loans to install high efficient heating
equipment in unattached single family homes.

1). Must be 2 ton or larger electric heat pump.

2). Must be new equipment.



3). Must-be-Energy-Starrated. The heat pump (outside unit only) must have a Heating

Seasonal Performance Factor (HSPF) greater than or equal to 8.5

4). Only one electric heating incentive payment will be paid per structure every ten
(10) years.

5). Electric Heat Incentive levels are:
East River Rebate Traverse Electric Rebate Total
$400 $200 $600
6). Condos, townhomes, and duplexes will be considered as individual units if
each living unit has its own heating system and meets the minimum
qualifications above or the size of the building’s system divided by the

number of living units meets the qualifications above.

B. In conjunction with East River’s marketing program, Traverse Electric will loan up to
$10,000 to eligible members/consumers for the following:

1). Heating equipment, heat pumps and geothermal systems

2). Wiring costs

3). Duct work

4). Generators sold by Traverse Electric Cooperative through the Generator
Program

C. All loans will carry an interest rate of five percent (5%) per annum and will be
amortized for 84 months.

III. ENERGY STAR APPLIANCE POLICY
Traverse Electric offers rebate only on appliances that are replacing existing appliances.

A). Rebate payments will be processed upon proof of disposal of the old appliance for
refrigerators and freezers.

B). Only new Energy Star appliances will qualify for the rebate.
C). Payment will be processed from purchase receipts.
D). Seasonal accounts and farm shops do not qualify for this program.

E). Only one rebate per appliance will be paid on each location.



F). Energy Star Appliance rebate levels are:

East River Rebate  Traverse Electric Rebate Total

Refrigerators $50 $50 $100
Freezers $50 $50 $100
Dish Washers $25 $25 $50
Clothes Washers $25 $25 $50
Clothes Dryers $25 $25 $50

IV. ENERGY EFFICIENT LIGHTING INCENTIVES

Traverse Electric will offer incentives for the replacement of inefficient lighting systems
in nonresidential settings.

A). The Member Services person will verify that new lights were installed.

B). The maximum incentive payment allowed is $1000 ($500 from East River & $500
from Traverse Electric).

C). The incentives will be paid-according-to-the-attached-sehedule-—calculated based on

the total watts reduced. The incentive is 20 cents per watt reduction (10 cents from East River
and 10 cents from Traverse Electric).

V. APARTMENT, COMMERCIAL, AGRICULTURAL, INSTITUTIONAL AND
INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC INCENTIVES

Traverse Electric will offer the following incentives to address the needs of non-
residential accounts: Apartment, Commercial, Institutional and Industrial Buildings.

A). Electric Heating Systems:

1. Resistance: $20($10 from East River, $10 from Traverse Electric) per kW
up to a max of 600 kW

2. Electric Heat Pump: $50 per ton of heating capacity

B). Natural Air and Electric Crop Drying: A 5% interest rate loan for costs associated
with installation of natural air or electric crop drying equipment.

C). Commercial/Industrial Process Equipment: A 5% interest loan for the cost of new
electric equipment used to meet the process requirements of commercial and industrial
customers. All applications under this section will require consultation and pre-approval from
East River.




$750 ($500 from East Rlver $250 frorn Traverse Electrlc) w111 be pald per dev1ce for a third-
party remote managed irrigation system provided that it meets the following minimum
requirements:
1. New system eliminates the need for an East River load control receiver
(irrigation controller).
2. Ability to ingest automated notice from East River of shed and restore via
email, text, or voice.
3. Provide less than 15-minute latency from East River email to load
shed/restore.
4. Provide Traverse Electric notice of customer bypass.
5. If a consumer who received a rebate discontinues third-party control
within five years and requests an East River control be re-installed, the
consumer is required to pay for a new East River receiver up to $500.

VI. ENERGY AUDIT INCENTIVES
A). Traverse Electric will perform energy audits for the members at a cost of $50.

B). The energy audit shall provide a list of recommended energy efficiency
improvements with estimated paybacks of 10 years or less.

C). East River will provide rebates of 10% of the cost of energy improvements, up to
$500. This rebate is only to homes that have had an energy audit and only one rebate
payment will be made per structure.

D). 5% interest rate loans will be available for weatherization and energy efficiency
improvements that are recommended in the energy audit. Traverse Electric employees
are eligible for loans (but no rebates) under this program.

A. The General Manager and department heads are responsible for the administration
of this policy.
B. The Board of Directors is responsible for any changes in or revisions of this policy.

Date Adopted _ 12-02-86
Date Reviewed 12-31-07
Date Reviewed 02-22-10
Date Revised__ 04-30-19
Date Revised  07-23-19

Mark Pearson, Secretary



Diekmann seconded the motion and upon vote motion carried unanimously.

Lupkes presented the resolution to Re-Adopt the Executive Compensation 457 (b) Plan for
Employees. Periodically, NRECA will review the plan and make necessary changes. Armstrong
made a motion to approve the following Resolution:

Board Resolution to Re-Adopt

the Executive Compensation 457 (b) Plan for Employees
EMPLOYER ID#: MN 24084

Resolved, that Traverse Electric Cooperative Inc. (the “Employer”) hereby re-adopts the
Executive Compensation 457(b) Plan for Employees in the form presented, to replace and
supersede the existing deferred compensation plan implemented through a series of documents
deferring compensation for certain employees, to be effective on the 1st day of August, 2019;
and resolved, that the officers of the Employer are authorized to execute any documents
necessary to adopt this Executive Compensation 457(b) Plan for Employees Plan and to continue
the investment of assets in Homestead Funds.

Homan seconded the motion and upon vote motion carried unanimously.

The board viewed the Basin video report.

The board discussed the NRECA annual meeting rotation.

Staff will bring proposed bylaw changes to the board for discussion at a future board meeting.
A list of upcoming meetings was reviewed.

Debra Englund from HRExpertise joined the meeting to provide training on Board Governance
and facilitate the annual general manager review.

Diekmann made a motion to go into executive session for the Board Governance training and
general manager review. Pearson seconded the motion and upon vote motion carried
unanimously. Lupkes left the meeting. Janorschke later left the meeting for the board to conduct
their review with Englund then rejoined the meeting.

Diekmann made a motion to come out of executive session. Frisch seconded the motion and
upon vote motion carried unanimously. Lupkes rejoined the meeting.

Frisch made a motion to approve the general manager review and salary adjustment effective
August 1, 2019. Marks seconded the motion and upon vote motion carried unanimously.

Other business:



Next board meeting will be on Tuesday, August 27, 2019 beginning at SAM.

Upcoming Board Member meetings:

MREA New Director Orientation, July 29-30, 2019, St. Cloud — Frisch

Board Chair Roundtable, July 30, 2019, St. Cloud - Veflin

MREA Energy Issues Summit, July 31-Aug. 1, 2019, St. Cloud, MN — Armstrong, Marks
East River Annual Meeting, Sept. 4, 2019, Sioux Falls, SD Armstrong (Delegate), Pearson,
Veflin(Alternate)

Basin Annual Meeting, Nov 5-7, 2019, Bismarck, ND

Mid-West Annual Meeting, Dec 10-12, 2019 — Denver, CO — Marks?

NRECA Annual Meeting, Feb 27-Mar 4, 2020, New Orleans - Monson?

Upcoming Managers Meetings:

East River MAC meeting, July 30, 2019, SDSU Campus, Brookings, SD
MREA Board Chair Round Table, July 30, 2019, St. Cloud, MN

East River Annual Meeting, Sept. 4, 2019, Sioux Falls, SD

REMA CEO Meeting, Sept. 4-6, 2019, Ottertail, MN

NRECA Region 5 & 6 meeting, Sept. 10-11, 2019, Milwaukee, WI
Basin Annual Meeting, Nov. 5-7, 2019, Bismarck, ND

As there was no further business, Diekmann made a motion to adjourn. Marks seconded the
motion and upon vote motion carried unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 3:30 PM

Mark Pearson, Secretary



trkarenl e J Page 1 of 6
TR PROD CM - Check Register-Detail 8/1412019 11:48.30AM
1 Cash - General Fund
Type Date Chk Nbr Name Total Check  Document
Amount Detail

CK 07/01/2019 115488 NRECA 121.64

Admin Fee 121.64
CK 07/01/2019 115489 FURTHER 875.02

HSA 875.02
CK  07/01/2019 115490 East River Federal Cu 1,375.00

July Credit Union 1,375.00
CK  07/01/2019 115491 Fed. Rural Elec. Ins. Co. 47,105.00

Directors, Officers & Mgrs 47,105.00
CK  07/01/2019 115492 [.LB.E.W. Lu 524 240.00

July Union Dues 240.00
CK  07/01/2019 115493 NRECA 26,389.74

Trust Contributions 26,389.74
CK 07/01/2019 115494 NRECA Group Benefits Trust 1,547.81

Group Ins 1,547.81
CK  07/01/2019 115495 NRECA 731.49

Admin Fee 731.49
CK  07/01/2019 115496 PROFESSIONAL COMPUTER SOLUTIONS LLC 2,880.75

Integrated Messaging for MCA - Final Inv 337.50

Import New Meters & Changes 745.75

CRC MultiSpeak Interface 863.50

June Hosting & User Fees 934.00
CK 07/01/2019 115497 Irby (Stuart C. Irby Company) 23,796.84

10 - 1 KVA OVH Transformers 3,780.00

56 Single 0 CT Meters 7,298.71

34 RD Demand Meters 12,718.13
CK 07/01/2019 115498 CS DIESEL INC. 210.00

DOT Insp - 2011 Felling Pole Trailer 70.00

DOT Insp - 96 Pole Trailer 70.00

DOT Insp - Plow Trailer 70.00
CK  07/01/2019 115499 Wesco Receivables Corp. 531.70

Materials 531.70
CK 07/01/2019 115500 TWIN VALLEY TIRE OF WHEATON INC 304.51

2 Batteries #126 304.51
CK 07/01/2019 115501 Amaril Uniform Company 460.81

A Reinke - 4 Henley, 2 Khaki Pant 487.21

Credit for Ret'd Shirts - Lon (26.40)
CK 07/01/2019 115502 AT&T 22.82

800 Service 22.82
CK 07/01/2019 115503 Integrity Contracting Inc 14,418.50

3 Phase Plowing - #9785 - Bois De Sioux Lin 2,000.00

Plowing & Boring #9784 - Bois De Sioux Lin 12,418.50
CK  07/01/2019 115504 Myron Foltz 600.00

Heat Pump Rebate 600.00
CK  07/01/2019 115505 David Nelson 600.00

Heat Pump Rebate 600.00
CK 07/01/2019 115506 Frontier 341.14

Office Phone Service & OSL Service 341.14
CK 07/01/2019 115507 Dacotah Paper Company 231.48

6 Cases of Copy Paper 231.48




trkarenl o o Page 2 of 6
et CM - Check Register-Detail 8/142019 11483 LAM
1 Cash - General Fund
Type Date Chk Nbr Name Total Check. Document
Amount Detail

WT 07/01/2019 8801443 USDA, Rural Util. Service 158,614.93

FFB Qtr Pmt 158,614.93
WT 07/01/2019 8801445 Minnesota Dept Of Revenue 2,269.06

June 30, 2019 payroll SWH 2,269.06
WT 07/02/2019 8801446 Internal Revenue Service 11,613.83

June 30, 2019 payroll FWH & FICA 11,613.83
CK  07/03/2019 115522 U.S. Postmaster 999.94

June 2019 billing postage 999.94
WT 07/03/2019 8801444 Natl Rural Elec Assn 4,880.99

June 30, 2019 payroll 401K 4,767.18

June 30, 2019 payroll 401K Loan 113.81
WT 07/05/2019 8801449 Payment Service Network Inc 947.08

June Credit Card Pmt Fees 947.08
CK 07/08/2019 115523 BJ's Parts Depot 3.69

Fuses 3.69
CK 07/08/2019 115524 PROFESSIONAL COMPUTER SOLUTIONS LLC 50.00

May Mobile Customer Ap 50.00
CK 07/08/2019 115525 Irby (Stuart C. Irby Company) 2,419.49

Fiberglass Box Pad 1,233.18

Sockets for 3 Phase Demand Meters 1,186.31
CK 07/08/2019 115526 East River Electric Coop 9,656.14

Wireless AMR for Collectors 9,656.14
CK 07/08/2019 115527 KMRS 40.00

Border West vs Parkers Prairie BB 40.00
CK 07/08/2019 115528 Basin Electric Power Coop 24.00

July Email Hosting 24.00
CK  07/08/2019 115529 CliftonLarsonAllen, LLC 4,500.00

Progress Billing #2 4,500.00
CK 07/08/2019 115530 Sturdevant's, Inc. 91.28

Ratchet Binder, Bolts, Lawn Mower Oil & Fil 91.28
CK 07/08/2019 115531 Tri-County Coop 42.04

Fuel for Forklift 42,04
CK  07/08/2019 115532 LILLEGARD, INC. 360.84

#139 99.46

#139 261.38
CK  07/08/2019 115533 UTILITY INSPECTION SERVICES, LLC 30,654.50

2019 Pole Inspection - 2138 Poles 30,654.50
CK 07/08/2019 115534 City Of Wheaton 179.79

Utilities 179.79
CK 07/08/2019 115535 COOPER POWER SYSTEMS LLC 25,487.74

114 KVA 7620 V Regulator for N Ottowa Dai 25,487.74
CK 07/08/2019 115536 Locators & Supplies 128.32

Rain Bibs - Austin 128.32
CK 07/08/2019 115537 Colonial Life 428.24

June Colonial Life 428.24
CK 07/08/2019 115538 NRECA 500.00

Executive Comp 457(b) Plan for Employees 500.00
CK 07/08/2019 115539 New Effington Volunteer Fire Dept 500.00

Fire Call - Trans started grass fire 500.00




trkarenl J Q Page 3 of 6
TR PROD CM = CheCk Rengter-Detall 8/14/2019 ]];4%;3 1AM
1 Cash - General Fund
Type Date Chk Nbr Name Total Check  Document
Amount Detail

CK  07/08/2019 115540 Tasha Heesch 32.40

Refund Overpmt for Line Const 32.40
CK  07/08/2019 115541 Dale N Schwagel 250.56

Mileage to B&B Transformer 250.56
CK  07/08/2019 115542 Morris Electronics Inc 2,375.80

Wireless Access Point Setup 105.00

4 Ubiquiti Wireless Inter Acc Pts & iCloud M 804.35

Discussion of Wiring for Aps 17.50

SonicWall TZ300 1,291.45

Firewall Setup 157.50
CK  07/08/2019 115543 NRECA-Coop Benefit Adm 15.00

June Cafeteria Expense 15.00
CK  07/08/2019 115544 Twin Valley Tire, Inc. 60.00

Rotate Tires #120 60.00
CK  07/08/2019 115545 Milbank House Movers 297.00

Refund Overpmt for Steinmetz/Stiegelmeier M 297.00
CK  07/08/2019 115546 Mediacom LLC 246.90

July Internet Service 246.90
WT 07/08/2019 8801447 Minnesota Ul Fund 338.00

2nd Quarter 2019 MN SUTA 338.00
WT 07/08/2019 8801448 Internal Revenue Service 84.00

2nd Quarter 2019 FUTA 84.00
WT 07/09/2019 8801453 EAST RIVER FCU 1,709.00

ER Credit Card Charges 1,709.00
CK  07/15/2019 115547 Border States Electric 790.98

For Use in Substation - Reclosures 575.20

Electrical Tape 215.78
CK 07/15/2019 115548 Dakota Supply Group 273.03

Material 273.03
CK  07/15/2019 115549 Gazette Publishing Co. 14.00

Co-Sponsor - Trapshooting 14.00
CK  07/15/2019 115550 SD Rural Electric Ass'n 455.00

Newsletter Labor & Insert 455.00
CK  07/15/2019 115551 SD DEPT OF REVENUE & REGULATION 472.80

SD 2% Excise Tax 472.80
CK  07/15/2019 115552 CS DIESEL INC. 327.20

DOT Car Trailer Inspection & Repair 327.20
CK  07/15/2019 115553 Wesco Receivables Corp. 1,717.70

Materials 623.30

Materials 1,094.40
CK  07/15/2019 115554 COOPER POWER SYSTEMS LLC 25,487.74

114 KVA Padmount Regulator for N Ottowa [ 25,487.74
CK 07/15/2019 115555 Star Energy Services 8,495.58

June IT & Safety Services, GIS Map Updates 8,495.58
CK  07/15/2019 115556 Amaril Uniform Company 269.17

3 Knit Henley - J Gahlon 269.17
CK 07/15/2019 115557 Landis & Gyr Technology Inc fka Cellnet Technology 750.00

June Meter Hosting 750.00
CK  07/15/2019 115558 HRExpertiseBP 2,660.00




trkarenl J o Page 4 of 6
TR PROD CM - Check Register-Detail 8/142019 11:48.3 1AM
1 Cash - General Fund
Type Date Chk Nbr Name Total Check  Document
Amount Detail

June HR Services & Policy Updates & Reviev 2,660.00
CK 07/15/2019 115559 Sag's Hardware Hank LLC 691.08

Materials & Supplies 691.08
CK  07/15/2019 115560 Altec Industries, Inc. 809.78

Boom Repairs #143 809.78
CK 07/15/2019 115561 Xerox Corporation 434.46

July Copier Lease 434.46
CK  07/15/2019 115562 Cenex Fleetcard 4,936.21

June Fuel 4,936.21
CK  07/15/2019 115563 Mike's Cleaning Service 454.22

June Janitorial Services 454.22
CK  07/15/2019 115564 Bluecross Blueshield 17,365.76

August Premiums Due in July 17,365.76
CK 07/15/2019 115565 Verizon Wireless 435.08

Linemen iPads 130.68

iPad & Cell Service 304.40
CK  07/16/2019 Payroll Batch # PR0O00856 32,103.76
WT 07/16/2019 8801455 Minnesota Dept Of Revenue 2,342.53

July 16, 2019 payroll SWH 2,342.53
WT 07/17/2019 8801454 Internal Revenue Service 11,937.64

July 16, 2019 payroll FWH & FICA 11,937.64
WT 07/18/2019 8801456 Natl Rural Elec Assn 5,458.88

July 16, 2019 payroll 401K 5,345.07

July 16, 2019 payroll 401K Loan 113.81
CK  07/22/2019 115580 Aflac 13.70

July AFLAC 13.70
CK  07/22/2019 115581 PROFESSIONAL COMPUTER SOLUTIONS LLC 984.00

July Hosting & User Fees 934.00

Mobile Customer Access for June 50.00
CK  07/22/2019 115582 Irby (Stuart C. Irby Company) 234,054.50

49,735' 1/0 URD Cable 98,094.33

Glove & Sleeve Testing & 1 Pr Gloves 407.19

Meters 135,552.98
CK 07/22/2019 115583 East River Electric Coop 5,908.05

AVL & Mo Lic & User Fees 5,908.05
CK 07/22/2019 115584 Fed. Rural Elec. Ins. Co. 1,511.00

Work Comp Audit Premium Adj 1,511.00
CK  07/22/2019 115585 Mn Rural Electric Ass'n 180.00

MREA Mtg Reg (Armstrong, Marks & Janors 180.00
CK  07/22/2019 115586 Valley Office Products 335.87

Supplies & Statements 335.87
CK  07/22/2019 115587 Wesco Receivables Corp. 8,312.74

Case Grounding 1,462.05

Materials 5,934.98

Materials 915.71
CK  07/22/2019 115588 Willy's Super Valu 59.08

Board Food & Supplies 59.08
CK 07/22/2019 115589 HALAGAN LAW FIRM LTD 245.00

Legal Services 245.00




trkarenl . o Page 5 of 6
T CM - Check Register-Detail 8/14/2019 11:48:3 IAM
1 Cash - General Fund
Tvpe Date Chk Nbr Name Total Check. Document
Amount Detail

CK  07/22/2019 115590 Delta Dental of Minnesota 1,199.20

Aug Premiums Paid in July 1,199.20
CK  07/22/2019 115591 Tri-State Tigers Athletic Boosters 150.00

Program Ad 150.00
CK  07/22/2019 115592 Landis & Gyr Technology Inc fka Cellnet Technology 507.67

TCU Cap Shelf for Sisseton Sub 507.67
CK 07/22/2019 115593 Integrity Contracting, Inc 21,575.00

Boring WO#9786 - B Conroy Line Ext 5,380.00

3 Phase Plowing & Boring WO#9787 - D Trit 16,195.00
CK  07/22/2019 115594 Eric Dumarce 600.00

Credit Overpayment for URD Transformer 600.00
CK  07/22/2019 115595 CRC Response Center Inc 1,195.30

June After Hours Service 1,195.30
CK  07/22/2019 115596 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 23.00

Shipping Charges 23.00
CK  07/22/2019 115597 Dymoke Law Office, P.A. 2,803.00

Legal Service - ER Agreement & RUS Docs 2,803.00
CK  07/22/2019 115598 South Dakota One Call 92.40

June SD Locates 92.40
CK  07/22/2019 115599 Big Stone Radio 59.00

BW BB Sponsor 59.00
CK  07/22/2019 115600 Gopher State One-Call 144.45

June MN Locates 144 .45
CK  07/22/2019 115601 North Dakota One-Call 1.20

June ND Locates 1.20
CK  07/22/2019 115602 LegalShield 147.50

July Id Theft Ins 147.50
WT  07/22/2019 8801450 CoBank ACB 22,524.76

CoBank Mo Princ & Int 22,524.76
WT 07/22/2019 8801451 SD DEPT OF REVENUE & REGULATION 13,061.34

SD Mo04.5% ST 13,061.34
WT 07/22/2019 8801452 Minnesota Sales & Use Tax 1,396.00

MN ST Return Pmt (Bal of June Accel Pmt) 1,396.00
CK  07/23/2019 115603 TOM FRISCH 256.96

T Frisch - Board Check 256.96
CK  07/23/2019 115604 Russell Armstrong 500.00

R Armstrong - Board Check 500.00
CK 07/23/2019 115605 Michael Marks 528.42

M Marks - Board Check 528.42
CK  07/23/2019 115606 Alan Veflin 284.80

A Veflin - Board Check 284.80
CK  07/23/2019 115607 Douglas Diekmann 258.70

D Diekmann - Board Check 258.70
CK  07/23/2019 115608 Mark Pearson 267.40

M Pearson - Board Check 267.40
CK  07/23/2019 115609 Pat Homan 273.20

P Homan - Board Check 273.20
CK  07/23/2019 115610 Karen Kath 285.96

K Kath - Board Check

285.96




Karenl 7 . =
TREROD CM - Check Reglstel’-Detall $1142019 11453 1AM

1 Cash - General Fund
Type Date Chk Nbr Name Total Check. Document
Amount Detail
CK  07/23/2019 115611 Terry Monson 301.62
T Monson - Board Check 301.62
CK  07/24/2019 115612 Wheaton Area Schools 5,745.40
CK 07/24/2019 115613 So Dak Treasurer's Office 2,976.89
Unclaimed Property 2,976.89
CK  07/29/2019 115614 PROFESSIONAL COMPUTER SOLUTIONS LLC 2,878.64
Set Up REC's, Stmt Chgs Ebill, Import & Chn 824.25
PDF Storage & Retrieval 157.00
Mobile Service Orders 450.00
CRC MultiSpeak Interface 1,447.39
CK  07/29/2019 115615 Resco 6,031.70
Credit for Warranty Upper Thermostat (12.46)
4 - 85 Gallon Water Heaters 5,114.79
Fuses 929.37
CK  07/29/2019 115616 MEI ENGINEERING INC 1,016.40
Work Order Inspection 1,016.40
CK  07/29/2019 115617 Chamberlain Oil Co. 695.66
Drum of Oil 695.66
CK  07/29/2019 115618 B&B Transformer Inc 12,164.00
Transformers & Pallets 12,164.00
CK  07/29/2019 115619 Integrity Contracting Inc 27,445.00
Boring WO#9802 - P Deal's Tile Pump Servic 1,120.00
3 Phase Plowing WO#9787 - D Tritz 18,909.00
Boring WO#9805 - M Lampert Tile Pump Set 1,520.00
Boring WO#9731 - URD Conversion for ER 4,216.00
Boring WO#9803 - C Raguse Tile Pump Serv 1,680.00
CK  07/29/2019 115620 AT&T 43.61
Phone Service 43.61
CK  07/29/2019 115621 Lon Tekrony 170.39
Boot Allowance 170.39
CK  07/29/2019 115622 Frontier 206.08
Office Phone & DSL Service 206.08
VvC 07/31/2019 115612 Wheaton Area Schools (5,745.40)
CK  07/31/2019 115623 FURTHER 3,000.00
Mark Koch HSA Contribution 3,000.00
CK  07/31/2019 Payroll Batch # PR000861 43,748.03
CK  07/31/2019 Payroll Batch # PR000865 3,615.92
WT 07/31/2019 8801457 NRUCFC 19,157.90
Qtr CFC Princ & Int Pmt 19,157.90
Total $944,458.45
Database: TR PROD Report:D:\HomeDir\PCS\Reports\PCSCustom\CM-Board Check Register.rpt
Parameters: ( ( {CMDoc.TranType} in ["CK", "MC", "VC", "WT"} AND ( Last Modified: 8/14/2019
{CMDoc.CheckStatus} < "C" ) ) AND ( NOT (isnull({CMDoc.BatchID}
) ) AND

({CMDoc.TranDate} in Date(2019, 7, 1) to Date(2019, 7, 31)) AND
{({CMDoc.BankAcctID} in ['1'])




August 27, 2019 Office Manager’s Report:

1. Accounts Receivable balances as of the 7/31/2019 billing statement:

Current (July 31% statement) $863,435.69

1-30 Days (June 30" statement) $20,271.00

31-60 Days (May 31* statement) $3,130.31 ( 41 Disconnect notices sent out, resulted
in 1 disconnect)

61-90 Days (April 30" statement) $805.22

Older than 91 days - $9,668.54

2. Dairyland Power in LaCrosse, WI will be printing and mailing our monthly billing statements
beginning with the next billing statement. They will also print and mail the late notices.

3. Just to give you an idea of how many of our members use echecks or debit/credit cards to pay:
In July, we had 385 payment transactions for a total of $75,695.82. Our fees were $996.92 that
we had to pay our payment processor, PSN, which is a rate of 1.3%. The rate we get is the utility
rate, which is very low in comparison to other retailers.

4. We have over 400 members who have registered for online and/or mobile app access. We have
close to 150 accounts set up to receive electronic only statement notifications (no printed bill

mailed).

5. lattended the Summer REMA Finance Managers Conference in Duluth August 20-22.



FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT

USDA - RUS

BORROWER DESIGNATION
MN 84 Traverse

PERIOD ENDED

INSTRUCTIONS - See RUS Bulletin 17178-2

July 2019

PART B. DATA ON TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION PLANT

YEAR-TO-DATE

YEAR-TO-DATE

ITEM LAST YEAR THIS YEAR ITEM LAST YEAR THIS YEAR
(a) (b) (a) (b)
1. New Services Connected 20 23|5. Miles Transmission
6. Miles Distribution-
2. Services Retired 14} 5| Overhead 1,175 1,170
" 7. Miles Distribution-
3. Total Services in Place 3,1H 3,197| Underground 524 532
4. Idle Services " 8.Total Miles Energized
(Exclude Seasonal) 0 Ol 5+6+7) 1,699 1,702
PART E. KWH AND KW STATISTICS
YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE
ITEM THIS MONTH YTD ITEM THIS MONTH Il YTD
(a) (b) (a) (b)
1. Net kWh Generated 6. Office Use 3,247} 224,704
2. kWh Purchased 8,937,909|| 67,894,137|7. Total Unaccounted For
3._Interchange kWh - Net (4 Less 5 & 6) 402,501 2,894,936
4. Total kWh (1 thru 3) 8,937,909 67,894,137|8. Percent System Loss
5. Total kWh Sold 8,532,161 64,774,497 (7/4)x100 5 4
9. Maximum Demand (kW 13,547
10. Mo When Max
Demand Occurred January 20628




PART D. CONSUMER SALES AND REVENUE DATA

THIS MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE
Class # Rec'g kWh # Min Avg # kWh Sold Amount
Of Service Sold Amount Bills Rec'g Serv Cumulative Cumulative
Service a b c d e f g
1. Residential Sales 2,514 3,606,860 471,771 2,509 33,888,190 3,742,735
2. Seasonal Sales 413 247,051 43,003 413 1,334,539 234,451
3. Irrigation Sales 12 17,866 2,452 12 18,487 8,840}
4. Comm - 50 kVA or less 2 6,943 1,260 2 21,808 4,059
5. Comm - over 50 kVA 107 944,929 90,461 106 6,148,710 578,725
6. Kinder Morgan 1 543,810 34,972 1 3,769,030 279,920
7. Veblen Dairy 1 1,712,509 123,977 1 9,923,190 730,463
8. WDCE - Graceville Lac 1 81,851 11,366 1 1,104,197 99,650
9. Dollymount Dairy 3 1,188,147 84,068 3 7,386,474 530,414
10. Campbell Dairy 1 182,195 16,918 1 1,179,872 110,243|
11. Total Sale of Electric 3,055 8,532,161 880,249 3,049 64,774,497 6,319,500'
12. Other Elec Revenue 2,128 16,783'
13. Total (11 + 12) 882,377 6,336,283

I

15052+2514=17566/7=2509
2482+413=2895/7=413
72412=84/7=12
15+2=17/7=2
635+107=742/7=106
18+3=21/7=3



A e ol e

10.

12.
13.

14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

21.
22.

23.
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.

Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Financial and Operating Report Electric Distribution

Statement of Operations
For the seven months ending 7/31/2019

Operating Revenue and Patronage Capital

Power Production Expense

Cost of Purchased Power

Transmission Expense

Regional Market Expense

Distribution Expense - Operation

Distribution Expense - Maintenance

Customer Accounts Expense

Customer Service and Informational Expense
Sales Expense

. Administrative and General Expense

Total Operation & Main. Expense (2 thru 11)
Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Tax Expense - Property & Gross Receipts

Tax Expense - Other

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Interest Charged to Construction - Credit
Interest Expense - Other

Other Deductions

Total Cost of Electric Service (12 thru 19)
Patronage Capital & Operating Margins (1 - 20)
Non Operating Margins - Interest

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
Income (Loss) from Equity Investments

Non Operating Margins - Other

Generation and Transmission Capital Credits
Other Capital Credits and Patronage Dividends
Extraordinary Items

Patronage Capital or Margins (21 thru 28)

2018 2019
YTD Actual YTD Actual
6,007,486.15 6,336,282.75
0.00 0.00
3,664,279.63 3,922,521.35
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
371,518.98 337,663.72
367,671.78 316,716.39
106,417.69 107,842.81
55,585.88 42,350.47
9,076.80 2,635.00
446,119.97 567,860.15
5,020,670.73 5,297,589.89
548,471.36 562,251.97
0.00 0.00
140.00 349.83
371,398.76 371,704.78
0.00 0.00
350.98 333.85
0.00 0.00
5,941,031.83 6,232,230.32
66,454.32 104,052.43
133,404.75 146,658.14
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
6,324.75 (18,684.41)
0.00 0.00
23,528.55 17,886.23
0.00 0.00
229,712.37 249,912.39

2019
YTD Budget

6,171,199.00
0.00
3,652,281.00
0.00

0.00
380,410.00
434,355.00
113,575.00
57,750.00
5,825.00
473,364.00

5,117,560.00
570,800.00

0.00

0.00
393,610.00
0.00

500.00

0.00
6,082,470.00

88,729.00
135,915.00

0.00

0.00
6,747.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
231,391.00

2019
July

882,377.18
0.00
554,636.26
0.00
0.00
38,343.98
37,239.20
17,051.26
7,889.96
(1,960.00)
61,562.79

714,763.45
80,878.56

0.00

0.00
53,336.78
0.00

78.57

0.00
849,057.36

33,319.82
20,178.46

0.00

0.00
911.41
0.00
6,488.00
0.00
60,897.69



Income Statement Analysis Ratios For the seven months ending 7/31/2019

Times Interest Ratio 2 tol

— Line 29 +Line 16/Line 16

249,912.39 + 371,704.78
371,704.78

Modified Times Interest Earned Ratio 2 tol

= Line29-Line 26 -Line27-Line 28 + Line 16/ Line 16

= 24991239 _ 0.00 — 17,886.23 - 0.00 + 371,704.78
371,704.78
Operating Times Interest Earned Ratio = 1 tol
= Line21+Line 16/ Line 16
= 104,052.43 — 371,704.78

371,704.78



©Ne R W

Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Financial and Operating Report Electric Distribution

Balance Sheet
For the period ending 07/31/2019

Assets and Other Debits
Total Utility Plant in Service
Construction Work in Progress
Total Utility Plant (1+2)
Accum. Provision for Depreciation and Amort
Net Utility Plant (3-4)
Non-Utility Property - Net
Investment in Subsidiary Companies
Invest in Assoc. Org.-Patronage Capital
Invest in Assoc. Org.-Other-General Funds

10. Invest in Assoc. Org.-Other-Nongeneral Funds
11. Investments in Economic Development Projects
12. Other Investments

13. Special Funds

14. Total Other Property & Investments(6 thru 13)
15. Cash-General Funds

16. Cash-Construction Funds-Trustee

17. Special Deposits

18. Temporary Investments

19. Notes Receivable - Net

20. Accounts Receivable - Sales of Energy (Net)
21. Accounts Receivable - Other (Net)

22. Renewable Energy Credits

23. Materials & Supplies - Electric and Other

24. Prepayments

25. Other Current & Accrued Assets

26. Total Current & Accrued Assets (15 thru 25)
27. Regulatory Assets

28. Other Deferred Debits

29. Total Assets & Other Debits (5+14+26 thru 28)

Liabilities and Other Credits

30. Memberships

3

1. Patronage Capital

32. Operating Margins - Prior Years

33. Operating Margins - Current Year

34. Non Operating Margins

35. Other Margins and Equities

36. Total Margins & Equities (30 thru 35)

37. Long-Term Debt RUS (Net)

38. Long-Term Debt - FFB - RUS Guaranteed
39. Long Term Debt - Other - RUS Guaranteed
40. Long-Term Debt - Other (Net)

41. Long-Term Debt - RUS - Econ. Devel. (Net)
42. Payments - Unapplied

43. Total Long-Term Debt (37 thru 41-42)

44. Obligations Under Capital Leases

45. Accumulated Operating Provisions

46. Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities (44 + 45)
47. Notes Payable

48. Accounts Payable

49. Consumer Deposits

50. Current Maturities Long Term Debt

51. Current Maturities - Econ Development
52. Current Maturities - Capital Leases

53. Other Current & Accrued Liabilities

54. Total Current & Accrued Liab (47 thru 53)
55. Regulatory Liabilities

56. Other Deferred Credits

57. Total Liab & Other Credits(36+43+46+54 thru 56)

2019 2018

July July July July
Activity Balance Activity Balance
53,443.58 25,440,023.00 1,700.34 24,926,355.26
366,501.84 1,817,303.13 52,261.31 135,431.59
419,945.42 27,257,326.13 53,961.65 25,061,786.85
(78,404.51) (11,260,208.33) (78,444.29) (10,667,875.20)
341,540.91 15,997,117.80 (24,482.64) 14,393,911.65
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 5,579,452.32 0.00 4,686,426.63
2,858.00 26,134.57 1,642.00 23,276.57
0.00 283,435.36 0.00 282,029.19

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(1,588.63) 72,465.22 (1,725.99) 96,311.39
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,269.37 5,961,487.47 (83.99) 5,088,043.78
2,182,667.26 2,744,582.55 (166,287.69) 373,735.32
0.00 1.00 0.00 1.00

0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00
(2,706,851.76) 858,737.93 (80,998.46) 4,512,138.25
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
65,927.32 928,426.39 56,762.62 926,030.26
25,576.01 (105,195.61) 8,299.76 58,292.12
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
78,888.00 711,877.31 18,911.20 460,216.20
50,388.61 67,823.32 50,287.94 67,128.83
(9,954.57) 3,863.52 5,980.16 18,618.99
(313,359.13) 5,211,116.41 (107,044.47) 6,417,160.97
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(5,397.89) 214,925.71 12,360.08 239,596.48
24,053.26 27,384,647.39 (119,251.02) 26,138,712.88
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(6,516.23) 12,397,497.59 (2,346.10) 10,962,375.75
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
33,319.82 104,052.43 24,362.41 66,454.32
27,577.87 145,861.97 28,313.09 163,259.42
2,514.70 448,440.09 1,051.99 412,027.09
56,896.16 13,095,852.08 51,381.39 11,604,116.58
(15,608.90) 5,096,014.04 (14,946.38) 5,283,930.43
(67,150.85) 9,813,541.46 0.00 10,078,398.08
(21,444.25) 241,489.68 (20,463.61) 493,381.59
(11,337.40) 615,894.56 (10,881.23) 660,553.69
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
23.937.79 (2,546,720.84) 22.800.37 (2,824,631.75)
(91,603.61) 13,220,218.90 (23,490.85) 13,691,632.04
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
137,417.98 848,137.02 (129,565.04) 658,934.02
900.00 13,650.00 150.00 13,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(73,127.06) 185,689.16 (15,836.61) 147,338.43
65,190.92 1.047,476.18 (145,251.65) 819,272.45
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(6,430.21) 21,100.23 (1,889.91) 23,691.81
24,053.26 27,384,647.39 (119,251.02) 26,138,712.88




Balance Sheet Analysis Ratios For the period ending 07/31/2019

Equity as a Percent of Assets 47.82 %

Line 36 / Line 29

13,095,852.08
27,384,647.39

General Funds as a Percent of Total Utility Plant = 13.4855 %

Line 12 + Linel3 + Linel5 + Line 16 + Line 18 / Line 3

72,465.22 + 0.00 + 2,744,582.55 + 1.00 +  858,737.93

27,257,326.13

Modified Equity as a Percent of Assets =  27.4475 %

= Line36-Line8/Line29

= 13,095,852.08 —  5,579,452.32
27,384,647.39
Current Assets to Current Liabilities Ratio = 49749 tol
= Line 26/ Line 54

5,211,116.41
1,047,476.18

Total Long-Term Debts as a Percentage of Total Utility Plant 48.5015 %

Line43/ Line 3

13,220,218.90
27,257,326.13




July Comparison 2019

Revenue

Cost of Power

Distribution Exp - Oper.

Distribution Exp. - Maint.

Interest Paid

Total Cost of Service

Margin Operation

Other Income

Total Margins

Total kWh Sold

Line Loss

18-Jul

876,855.25

558,522.07

36,926.28

39,257.56

55,676.04

852,492.84

24,362.41

28,313.09

52,675.50

8,206,033

5%

$

s

$

YTD 18

6,007,486.15

3,664,279.63

371,518.98

367,671.71

371,749.74

5,941,031.83

66,454.32

163,258.05

229,712.37

59,784,635

4%

s

s

YTD 19

6,336,282.75

3,922,521.35

337,663.72

316,716.39

372,038.63

6,232,230.32

104,052.43

145,859.96

249,912.39

64,774,497

4%

19-Jul

882,377.18

554,636.26

38,343.98

37,239.20

53,415.35

849,057.36

33,319.82

27,577.87

60,897.69

8,532,161

5%



Basin Electric Power Cooperative
Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Operations
July 31, 2019

Basin Electric Dakota Gasification Dakota Coal BCS Eliminations Consolidated
YEAR-TO-DATE
Member Sales $ 953590983.05 S - 3 - $ - S - $ 953,590,983 05
Nonmember sales 81 148 543.05 - - - - 81,148,543.05
SNG - 85,650,509.20 - - - 85650 509.20
Lignite coal - - 127,379,353.14 - (52,922,316.65) 74.457,036.49
Other revenue 12,414,327.49 138,616,258.56 13.074,292.83 - - 164,104,878.88
Total Revenue 1.047,153,853.59 224,266,767.76 140.453,645.97 - (52,922,316.65) 1,358,951,950.67
Impairment of Assets - - - - - -
Expenses before income taxes 983 901,652.67 258,522,115.09 129,024,045.85 1,670.49 (79.351.166.27) 1,292.098 317.83
Total expenses before income taxes + Impairment 983,901,652.67 258,522,115.09 129.024,045.85 1,670.49 (79.351,166.27) 1,292 098,317.83
Net Margin/Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes 63 252,200.92 (34,255,347.33) 11,429,600.12 (1.670.49) 26,428,849.62 66,853,632.84
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 48,650.00 (8.026.400.00) 2,157,250.00 9.100.00 42,000.00 (5.769,400.00)
Net Margin/Earnings {Loss) $ 63,203,550.92 $ (26,228,947.33) $ 9,272,350.12  ${10,770.49)  $ 26,386,849.62 $ 72,623,032.84
Budgeted Margin/Earnings (Loss) S 6700473596 S (3,312,877.98) $(2,146.569.77) $ - S 3470,801.00 $ 65016089.21
Basin Electric Dakota Gasification Dakota Coal BCS Eliminations Consolidated
CURRENT MONTH
Member sales $ 14907644255 S - 3 - $ - S - S 149.076.442 55
Nonmember sales 12739 28353 - - - - 12739 283.53
SNG - 7.970,799.73 - - - 797079973
Lignite coal - - 20,276 991.02 - (8.706.023.88) 11.570.967.14
Other revenue 1733.977.19 11,727,509.73 2.104,824.05 - - 15,566 310.97
Total Revenue 163,549,703.27 19.698,309.46 22,381,815.07 - (8.706,023.88) 196.923 803 92
Impairment of Assets - - - - - -
Expenses before income taxes 149 136 843.07 33,180 421.29 22.630,707.82 214.01 (19.168 293.18) 185 779.893 01
Total expenses before income taxes + Impairment 149,136 843.07 33 180.421.29 22.630,707.82 214.01 (19.168,293.18) 185,779,893 01
Net Margin/Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes 14,412 860.20 (13.482.111.83) (248,892.75) (214.01) 10,462,269.30 11.143,910.91
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 2 900.00 (3,048 400.00} (63,300.00) 1.300.00 6,000.00 (3,101,500.00)
Net Margin/Earnings {Loss) $ 14,409,960.20 $ (10,433,711.83) $ (185592.75) $ (1,514.01) $10,456,269.30 § 14,245,410.91
Budgeted Margin/Earnings (Loss) S 2597390371 § (5.896979.76) S 756,767.80 S - S 591954000 5 2675323175

Aug 7 2019

34946 PM



OPERATIONS REPORT AUGUST 2019

As of August 16, 2019, Crews have been busy with the following:

Pole changeouts

New services and service upgrades

Cut in cabinet, bore, install 200ft for new tile pump: Deal

Plow 3100ft for new hog facility: Toelle

Bore, plow and install 3100ft for 2 new tile services: Raguse

Move 3 phase transformer and service: Pistorius

Finished 3 phase project, 16,000 ft, and energized: Tritz

Completed the project east of Campbell, retirement is also done. 15,200ft on the single phase
portion

Crews have also completed 2 more of the projects in Sd, for the new East River transmission
line, and they continue to terminate on the next 4.

We had another underground fault at the airport, this cable is going to be replaced also, waiting
for the contractor to bore the runway for us.

Underground fault on a circuit out of the Beardsley sub. Appeared to be damaged back when it
was originally installed.

Bin move

Tank move, 2 crews, 2 days again

Finally got the last of the routers installed. We did however, have one shot already and had to
take it down and replace.

Miscellaneous:

Integrity Contracting, our underground contractor, continues to work on the projects in SD for the
new transmission line, that is coming through early 2020. The wet weather has made it a
challenge, to say the least. They even had one of their bomb units drop in, with water to midpoint
of the windshield. They were hoping to have been done with these projects, but the weather has
not cooperated at all.

o We will be having them move back up to the North Ottowa Dairy, the 26, to plow the

last portion of this, to the north service.

Carr’s Tree service, has 4 crews working in the Bigstone lake/Beardsiey area.
Chapman metering is still in the Beardsley area, the changeouts are going slower than |
anticipated, but they assure us, that these will be done before the end of the year.
The last shipment of meters should be here next week.
We have transferred over, from bi-weekly meetings with Landis/Gyr project manager, to the help
desk, due to that part of the contract being fulfilled
I did spend 2 % days with Tyler Hurd, Landis/Gyr field rep, going through trouble shooting that
may be required in the future, using the field tools we purchased, as well as using command
center for it as well.

GIS/APPS:



e Continue to update maps, as we find issues.

® The new GIS carry maps have been installed on all ipads, crews are getting use to how they work.
® Weare now doing job briefings on the ipad, as well as daily DOT inspections for the trucks.

e Dennis is also using the ipad for monthly inspections of, fire extinguishers, fork lift, skid loader.

® We also have a meter changeout app that we are starting to use, as we are on site, we are
changing out the meters as well.

SAFETY:

o Safety playbooks, (samples attached)

o The Safety Pallet

o Download on Safety

o | was at Rosseau Electric Cooperative, to do their RESAP observation with MREA

o BE SAFE Topics

o Live well: health and wellness
e FEDERATED:

o Litigation report
e SDREA: Safety Works news letter
e  TRAVERSE ELECTRIC: crew observations

Outage reports attached:

e Traverse
e East River

Dale Schwagel

Operations Manager



July 2019 Outages

OUTAGE DATE

LOCATION

White Rock Colony

| CAUSE OF OUTAGE
|OTP issue

[Tree branch in line, removed and trimmed

'Reset OCR-no problem found

| Transformer failed

' Blown take off fuse

|Pianned outage to remove voltage regulator

|Blown transformer fuse

|Backhoe knocked out line-biliable
Replaced arrestor, installed squirrel guard
‘and wrap

'Replaced cut out

|Urd fault at Kevin Jackson's tap

'Urd fault

|OCR went bad, bypassed with fuse

|Riser fuse blown
|Urd fault-gophers

Blown transformer fuse-lightning
jBIown fuse

|Blown transformer fuse

7/1/2019 "_Graceville substation
711/2019  02-10-1

'Douglas Wilts Estate
7/1/2019 | 22B-06-10

|Michael Hynnek
7/3/2019  30-33-FJ

Brad & Nancy Meyer
7/8/2019  02-31-4B

Randy Lenhard
7/8/2019 |52, 53, & 53A

TEC
7/10/2019  38-1-00

_Robert Toelle
7/11/2019  33-23-3 |

James Graham Estate |
7/11/2019  40-07-2

_Curtis Tesch
7/12/2019  30-35-L5

‘William Elmstrom
7/13/2019  35-15-1

Norman Carison
7/13/2019 | 35-34-3

Kevin Jackson
717/2019  22-29-1

_Kevin Taffe
7/18/2019  49-8-1

| Bruce Brittain

7/18/2019  47-22-2A

Duane Wanna
7/18/2019  25-26-0

City of Wheaton
7/18/2019  49-9-3

|Jared Bartnick
7/20/2019  40-12-2

' Kevin Mojica
7/22/2019  15-18-3

_Jerald & Annie Jipson |
7/25/2019  36-35-1

\Fuse at take off pole was blown

__TIME OFF | TIME ON
450AM | 5:35 AM
9:20AM | 11:29AM
1210PM | 2:15PM
7:27PM | 9:40 PM

8:00 AM_ 9:00 AM
11:38AM | 11:43 AM
8:55PM | 10:05 PM

2117 PM| 3:45PM
12.30PM  1:30 PM
11:54 AM | 2:00 PM
9:30AM | 11:35 AM
9:30AM | 2:21PM
4:50AM | 8:10AM
530AM  9:45AM
9:45PM  11:30 PM
356PM | 7:15PM
530 AM  6:45AM
11:35AM  12:45 PM
8:20 AM  10:00 AM
10:40 AM | 12:30 PM

N
-
F-S

No. consumers affected

8

& POWER SUPPLY

No. consumers affected

PRE-ARRANGED

13}

65

Consumer-Hour Outage Time |

(in minutes)

No. consumers affected

No. consumers affected

STORM

15

21

19

64

10

2 510

OTHER

1935
2625 |
133

60

70
176
60
2394
8000
291

2000

105

995

70
100

110




July 2019 Outages

OUTAGE DATE LOCATION
7/26/2019  52-20-3
 Martin Borgen
7/26/2018 | 23-08-2
|Maynard Arndt
| 7/27/2019  |39-20-4 B
|Dale Kaufmann
7/27/12019 | 17-25-1
|Rodney Johnson
7/28/2019  21-21-2
|Jeff Christensen
7/30/2019 | 48-19-3
| Thomas Twitero
7/31/2019  06-05-2A
TEC

) CAUSE OF OUTAGE
' Blown tub fuse

[Tree branch fell into line

:Blown fuse-Squirrel

'Clamp broke on bottom side of cut out
'Refused Cut Out

‘IShut line off and tested & grounded to cut
over

:Blown riser & transformer fuse-unknown caus«: 2:50 PM

Consumer-Hour Outage Time |

(in minutes)
‘8 v '8 b
g 3 B 3
- C | o B %
o o o o ] ®
@ ['B o zZ @ ©
£ 7 E S £ E
] o 2 & ] = A
c c c c 14
o < Q
Sies 8 | F | 8 5 8 g
 TIMEOFF TIMEON 2 2 2 & 2 7 2 o
10:30AM  12:30 PM 1 120
3:00PM | 5:00 PM 10 1200
5:55 PM__ 8:06 PM 34 4454 |
| 345PM 1 55
400PM | 5:40 PM 3 300
| 9:00AM | 10:45AM 1 105
_ 9:30AM | 10:05AM 17, 595
TOTALS 214 9630 30 660 3 585 185 25358
[ YTD Totals 2785__ 07538 119 3825 101 19325 857 105636




EAST RIVER OPERATIONS CENTER REPORT 8/15/2019

ELECTRIC Date of Report
POWER COOPERATIVE
20528
Daily Events: Breaker Operation: Yes Outage: No Load Control: NO
Delivery Substation: OTPC Breaker: B
Breaker Operations Distribution Reason Outages Number of | Consumer
Time | Number | Substations Affected | Code |Time Off| Date Off |Time On| Date On |Hours Off| Consumers| Hours Off
18:40 1 Hillhead WA 0.00 693 0.00
Veblen (LR) WA 0.00 ™ 0.00
T Veblen (TR) WA ' 0.00 1 0.00
Reason Code Legend:
A Animal in Chrcui MF Mechanical Failure TR Trees
cT ___ Falled Current Tr oT Other T8 Thur
FA | Fallad Arrestor PM Preventive Maintenance UN Unknown
Fl | Failed Insulalor PS Power Supplier VA Vehicle Accident
Fo | Foreign Object in Circuit PT Failed Polential Transf WA Whaaling Agant
15 | ___lce Storm ) SnowStorm wi - Wind
Crews Dispatched Out:
Operations Comments: Weather in the area.

Targets:

Outage Comments: .
Handled By: CN
Dispatch Controled By: East River

LLoad Control Comments:

MW Demand Control Threshold This Period: _ Mw
High MW Demand This Period: o MW Date:
High Valid MW Demand This Period: Mw Date:

High MW Today:

Loads Controled This Date: WAT DFU AR HSE DM1 IR1 1 IN2 1H1

IN
AM Control Time In Minutes: ] e ]
Valid Control:

Loads Controled This Date: WAT DFU AR HSE DM1 [R1 IN1 IN2 IH1

PM Control Time In Minutes: l ” “ ]r |L —“ H [ I
Valid Control: No |

Completed By: Chad Nowstrup




EAST RIVER ﬁ OPERATIONS CENTER REPORT 7119/2019

ELECTRIC Date of Report
POWER COOPERATIVE
20476
Daily Events: Breaker Operation: Yes Outage: No Load Control: NoO
Delivery Substation: Summit Breaker: 1252
Breaker Operations Distribution Reason Outages Number of | Consumer
Time | Number | Substations Affected | Code [Time Off| Date Off |Time On| Date On {Hours Off|Consumers| Hours Off
9:42 1 Ortley TS 0.00 196 0.00
10:07 | 1 Wilmot TS 0.00 544 0.00
Grenville T8 0.00 948 0.00
Peever TS 0.00 500 0.00
Sisseton TS 0.00 543 0.00
[ Victor TS 0.00 483 0.00
Reason Code Legend:
AC Animal in Circult MF Mechanical Failure IR Trees
. CT Failad Current Transformar oT o Other T8 Thundersiorm
FA Falled Asreslor PM Preventive Malntenance UN Unknown
FI Failed Insulator PS Power Suppli VA Vehicle Accldent
FO Forelgn Object In Clreuil PT Falled Potentlal Transf WA Whesling Agent
IS ice Storm 88 Snow Storm Wi Wind

Crews Dispatched Out:

Operations Comments: Weather in the area.
Targets: 1252 69 I/IR, 21/67G-11

Outage Comments:
Handled By: Brad, Dan & Clay

Dispatch Controled By: East River

Load Control Comments:

MW Demand Control Threshold This Period: o Mw
High MW Demand This Period: MW Date: _
High Valid MW Demand This Period: . Mw Date:

High MW Today:

Loads Controled This Date: WAT DFU AIR HSE DM1 IR1 IN1 N2 IH1

AM Control Time In Minutes: L____l |:| :l '___l i_j L §H7 1 I | I_:'
Valid Control: Ijlg

Loads Controled This Date: WAT DFU AR HSE DM1 IR1 N1 IN2 IH1

PM Control Time in Minutes: l ] L §| I | I_J L —l L W L l L J L l
Valid Control: [N—°|

Completed By: Chad Nowstrup




EAST RIVER OPERATIONS CENTER REPORT 7/19/2019

ELECTRIC Date of Report
POWER COOPERATIVE
20475
Daily Events: Breaker Operation: Yes Outage: No Load Control: No
Delivery Substation: OTPC Breaker:

Breaker Operations Distribution Reason Outages Number of | Consumer
Time | Number | Substations Affected | Code |Time Off| Date Off |[Time On| Date On |Hours Off|Consumers| Hours Off
10:11 1 Dumont WA 0.00 164 0.00

Graceviile WA 0.00 209 0.00
Reason Code Legend:
[ac Animal in Circuil W Mechanical Failure TR Trees
L_ET Falled Current Transformer oT Olher T8 Thunderstorm
FA Failed Arrestor PM Praventive Main UN Unknown
F Failed [nsulator PS Power Suppll VA Vehicle Accldent
FO Forelgn Objact in Circuit PT Falled Polential Transformer WA Whealing Agent
1S lca Stomm SS Snow Storm bl Wind
Crews Dispatched Out: o
Operations Comments: Weather in the area,
Targets:
Outage Comments:
Handled By: Brad, Dan & Clay

Dispatch Controled By: East River

Load Control Comments:

MW Demand Control Threshold This Period: . Mw
High MW Demand This Period: MW Date:
High Valid MW Demand This Period: MW Date:

High MW Today:

Loads Controled This Date: WAT DFU AR HSE DM1 IR1 IN1 IN2 1H1

Control Time In Minutes: l—j ’_—_l l————l |_—_| I__\ r | | | l ] ’7 l
Valid Control:

Loads Controled This Date: WAT DFU AIR HSE DMt IR1 IN1 IN2 IH1

P M Control Time In Minutes: I_____l |___| I_____I l__] I___' L_J l__,] ‘__J l___,
Valid Control: @

Completed By: Chad Nowstrup

AM




OPERATIONS CENTER REPORT 7/19/2019

Date of Report

EAST RIVER

ELECTRIC
POWER COOPERATIVE

20477
Daily Events: Breaker Operation: Yes Outage: No Load Control: NO
Delivery Substation: OTPC Breaker: -

Breaker Operations Distribution Reason Qutages Number of | Consumer
Time | Number | Substations Affected | Code |Time Off| Date Off [Time On| Date On |Hours Off{ Consumers| Hours Off
9:07 1 Beardsley WA 0.00 630 0.00
9:23 1 )

Reason Code Legend:

AC Animal in Gircuit N MF Machanical Failure TR Trees
CT Failed Current Transformer oT Othar TS Thundsrslorm
FA Falled Arrastor PM Preventive Maintenance UN o Unknown
Fl Falled insulator PS Power Supplt VA Vehicle Accldent
FO Foreign Objecl in Circuit PT Failed Polential Transformer WA Wheeling Agsnt
s Ice Storm ss Snow Storm w Wind
Crews Dispatched Out:
Operations Comments: Weather in the area.

Targets:

Outage Comments:
Handled By: Dan & Brad

Dispatch Controled By: East River

Load Control Comments:

MW Demand Control Threshold This Period:  Mw

High MW Demand This Period: _ Mw Date: o
High Valid MW Demand This Period: MW Date:

High MW Today:

Loads Controled This Date: WAT DFU AR HSE DMt IR1 iN1 IN2 IH1

Control Time In Minutes: L I I I l , l__—__, [ I [_——| I l__,__' |:,I
Valid Control:

Loads Controled This Date: WAT DFU AIR HSE DM1 IR1 IN1 IN2 IH1

P M Control Time In Minutes: |_, [____J \_j [__’ r_l l_____l ‘_____l {___] [:j
Valid Control: E’Q

Completed By: Chad Nowstrup

AM




SQfet\/ PIGVbOOk 201 9 For the game of life

Date Used Co-op/Company

Coach Title

Play of the Week: As you read some of I— e T ———— == )
the stories below, we see why seeing Safety Pays! |
hazards can often be difficult, even ! Thanks to all for submitting stories and pictures — I
when it is right in front of us. And, for two | keep them coming for it pays to share I
of the stories, we begin to understand I in more ways than one!
what Mother Nature meant when she | !
said, “Here, hold my beer!” Welcome to | Send your stories/pictures to any SLC crew |
the outdoors! I member. 1
b o o o o e e e e e e Em e o e e e o |
What happened?

From Minnesota co-op - Last Friday, we were working outages after a lightning storm. We came across this
house that was heavily damaged by lightning. There was an antenna on his flag pole; the pole was struck
by lightning which then followed the antenna cable down the pole, under ground to the house and caused
this - see Picture A.

From North Dakota co-op - Crew found burnt pole and cross arm caused from a leaking cut-out. [see
Picture B and C]

From Kentucky co-op - Servicemen had been out removing a tree from our 3-phase line this morning on
Paintsville Lake Wildlife Management area. Upon returning employee was complaining with eye pain and
saying he could feel something in it. Myself and another employee looked and | spotted what looked like a
small speck of wood on his eyeball. | attempted to flush it out and it didn’t move. We used an eye wash
station and still no luck. | made the decision to send him to a local eye doctor and the photos you see
above are of the pin head size deer tick that had already embedded and was attached. The doctor was
able to remove it and he is receiving antibiotic drops and will be returning for follow up visit. Both
employees had sprayed with ticket repellent prior to going out this morning, but you can't protect your face
and eye area with total protection - who would have thought. [see Picture D]

I

[
.!,

e ——

E.'I :5 = -__.r .

E

~

Ve — - .w- ;

Electric Association

s’ N ” s - AT ;

Minnesota Rural



Safeh_l P'QYbOO 2] 9 _For the game of life

Safety Suggestions
Do you need to change your safe
work practices today from
the stories shared?

Gl

(9}

r—l-’-v—l._n-—___;-h_r-——————-—x—-m————

Your words and actions set the standard of safety here -
every word, every action, every day

e

We are often asked what |
call the OSHA question -
“Does OSHA say we have to .
. ." and you can fill in with a
number of statements. And,
when asked, our response
has two parts.

First, we state and discuss
what OSHA says about the
item in question, often
explaining it might not be
clear cut. There is a lot of
“gray” in OSHA rules.

The second part, however, is
more important. We ask if it
really matters what OSHA
says, for the most important
question you should ask is,
“What kind of safety standard
do WE WANT for our co-op?”
OSHA rules are simply the
minimum. It's up to us to
establish the standard.




Sufet\/ PIGVbOOk 201 9 For the game of life

Date Used Co-op/Company

Coach Title

Play of the Week: NRECA has landed on these four statements they
call the “golden rules.”

Wearing gloves and long sleeves
Installing personal grounds
Applying proper insulating material
Using proper clearance procedures

[ 4

LN

Make them part of your safe work practices today and every day!

What happened?

From Minnesota Co-op - What happens when you are locating an
energized 3-phase URD line by hand . . . and you cut the primary, causing
an outage? You get one VERY LUCKY summer helper who just learned a
valuable lesson. [See Picture A]

From Minnesota Co-op - Co-op had underground fault to members meter
service by home. Found wires tapped in ahead of the meter feeding into
the garage. [See Picture B and C]

s T o, ey A OB
(RS ;\”“) ﬂv“? W) “-;_ S

PG A0

|———————-———-—-———-—-1

| Safety Suggestions
I Do you need to change your safe work practices today from
I the stories shared?

e

August 16, 2019

Safety Pays!

If you learned something
today from an incident in
the field, then share it.
That's what makes the
difference between a good
lineworker and a GREAT
lineworker . . . because you
don’t want to see anyone
else get hurt.

Send your stories/pictures to
Lidia, Chad, Curt or Andrew.

s oo o oo o0 o0 o0 o0 - En =




BOARD REPORT
Safety and Compliance
Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc.
July 2019

MANAGEMENT

v Safety Recommendation — Critical Clients on 07/12/19

¥v" Mutual Aid Packet with Information Transfer documented completed on 07/24/19
v"  Internal Communication — Reminder: MN Hands-Free Law on 07/29/19

|l &|®
5| S| §
AWAIR/SIP Goals S| 5e
1. Implement a Plan to Appropriately Handle an Unannounced OSHA Visit v
2.  Provide De-escalation Training for Employees v
3. Focus on Inspections v
EDUCATION
Topic Audience Date Presenter
Monthly Newsletter — Heat Related llinesses All employees 05/31/19 STAR
Cooperative Connections — Stay Back and Stay Safe; Members/Public 07/19 TEC
Electrical Safety Tips for 4'" of July
Monthly Poster — Ladder Inspections All employees 07/01/19 STAR
Safety Bulletin Board Notice — Heat Stress; Portable Ladder Safety  All employees 07/01/19 STAR
Be Safe — Get Ready for Hands-Free Minnesota All employees 07/02/19 STAR
Be Safe — Safety Around Electric Vehicles All employees 07/10/19 STAR
MREA Download on Safety Office employees 07/17/19 TEC/MREA
INSPECTIONS

v" Monthly fire extinguisher and first aid inspections by TEC on 07/16/19
v" Monthly forklift inspection by TEC on 07/16/19

EVENTS (not including damage to poles/structures by public)
No new events reported during this period. See table below.
v' Year-to-Date Injuries: 0 (includes no OSHA recordables)
v Year-to-Date Damage: 0 (includes no DOT reportable)

v' Year-to-Date Near Miss: 1

Date Type Description Actions

In future, blanket to be placed against tank of pad-

04/30/19 Near Miss | Wrench slipped and contacted energized transformer mounted transformer when connecting hot secondaries

T

Preparé‘?d'yyffAR on behalf of TEC



II.

II1.

TRAVERSE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.
Wheaton, Minnesota

BOARD POLICY NO. 509

NEPOTISM

OBJECTIVE

To set forth a policy with regard to the employment of close relatives of the
Directors and current employees of Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc.

POLICY

In the interest of maintaining fair, equitable and impartial employment practices,
no person will be considered for full-time regular employment who is a close
relative to a currently active, serving member of the board of directors or to a
person who is employed as a regular full-time employee.

A .—TFhe-spouse-orantmmediate-family-member-of an-employee-ordirects gl
\ el f].j Ej ]i hall iﬁl' T Elj'
Cooperative-

A. For this policy a close relative is defined as husband, wife, son (stepson),
daughter (stepdaughter), father (stepfather), mother (stepmother), sister

(stepsister), brother (stepbrother), mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law,
sister-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, niece, nephew, aunt, and uncle.

B. If through his/her own marriage, an employee creates a violation of this
policy, one will be required to terminate employment at the Cooperative. It will
be the responsibility of one of the employees to leave the employment of the
cooperative within thirty (30) days. In the event the employees affected do not
make this determination, the employee with the least years of service at the
cooperative will be terminated.

C. A close relative of an employee shall not run for director at Traverse Electric
Cooperative.

RESPONSIBILITY



A. The General Manager and department heads shall be responsible for the
administration of this policy.

B. The Board of Directors is responsible for any change in or revision of this
policy.

Date Adopted: July 30, 2001

Date Reviewed: Feb 22, 2010

Date Revised: August 27, 2019

Mark Pearson, Secretary



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE 2020 BASIN LOAD FORECAST

WHEREAS, Basin Electric Power Cooperative has completed a detailed forecast of total
demand and energy requirements for the period of 2019 through 2050; and

WHEREAS, the forecast was prepared in accordance with current Rural Utilities Service
regulations using reasonable methodologies and assumptions; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc. has reviewed the
study and its conclusions;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Traverse Electric Cooperative,
Inc. does hereby adopt and approve the 2020 Load Forecast prepared by Basin Electric Power
Cooperative as a reasonable forecast of the future demand and energy requirements for Traverse
Electric Cooperative, Inc. through the year 2050.

And that the action taken and /or resolutions adopted as above set out have never been
rescinded, altered, amended, modified or repealed, and are of the date hereof in full force and
effect.

I, Mark Pearson, Secretary of Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc. do hereby certify that the
above is a true and correct excerpt from the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors of
Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc. held on August 27, 2019, at which a quorum was present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of Traverse
Electric Cooperative, Inc. this 27" day of August, 2019,

Mark Pearson, Secretary



CAST

LOAD FORE

202

- T

D e AR e -

S o E L




2020 Load Forecast

Traverse Electric Cooperative

PREPARED BY: BASIN ELECTRIC POWER COOPERATIVE



2020 Load Forecast

Traverse Electric Cooperative

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1. Introduction
1.1. Purpose
1.2. Procedures
1.3. Scope
2. Load Forecast Process
2.1. Econometric Models
2.2. Energy Efficiency & Conservation
2.3. Demand Side Management
2.4. Sources for Explanatory Variables
2.5. Explanatory Variables
3. Cooperative Narrative
4. Service Territory Characteristics
5. Load Forecast Development
5.1. Residential Consumers Forecast
5.2. Residential Energy Use per Consumer Forecast
5.3. Forecasted Total Residential Energy
5.4. Small Commercial
5.5. Large Commercial
5.6. Irrigation
5.7. Other Sectors
6. Load Forecast Details
6.1. Annual Energy Sales
6.2. Annual Energy Requirements
6.3. Annual Number of Consumers
6.4. Annual and Seasonal Demand , Annual Energy and Load Factors
6.5. 2019 Update vs. 2020 Load Forecast Comparison

7. System Requirements

2020 LOAD FORECAST



2020 Load Forecast

Traverse Electric Cooperative

1. Introduction

1.1. Purpose
The purpose of the 2020 Load Forecast is to develop an energy and demand load forecast for the period of
2019 through 2050 for Traverse Electric Cooperative. The load forecast is used for a variety of purposes such
as work plans, financial forecasts, service cost studies, rate studies, transmission studies, loan applications,
integrated resource plans, and equity development plans. This load forecast and those of other distribution
cooperatives serve as building blocks for the Basin Electric Power Cooperative (Basin Electric) Load Forecast,
and are an integral part of the planning process. The consumer-owner load forecasts are an important factor

in Traverse Electric Cooperative’s future plans and decisions.

1.2. Procedures
This load forecast is prepared in accordance with the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) general guidelines and the
procedures specified in the 2020 Load Forecast Work Plan approved by the Basin Electric Board of Directors.
The load forecast process represents a joint effort by the distribution cooperatives, the generation and
transmission cooperatives (G&T's), and Basin Electric. To assure all segments of the cooperative structure
are involved in the load forecast process, a steering committee was established consisting of representatives
from the distribution cooperatives, the G&T’s, and Basin Electric.

The Load Forecast Technical Committee established the project schedule and procedures used in preparing
the 2020 Load Forecast. Attendance and participation at the committee meeting provided a forum for the

cooperatives to exchange ideas and discuss problems.

1.3. Scope
The 2020 Load Forecast is a total load forecast for the period of 2019 through 2050. Individual consumer and
energy forecasts are prepared for each consumer classification within the service territory. Econometric
models are developed to project consumers and energy sales of the residential classification and, where
applicable, small commercial, large commercial, oil, and coal related commercial classifications. For
consumer classifications where econometric models are not used, a judgmental forecast is prepared by the
distribution cooperative. These judgmental forecasts consider past trends and future expectations. They also

reflect the experience and knowledge the cooperative has of its service territory.

To determine the projected annual energy, the total projected requirements of each consumer classification
are increased to include the cooperative’s own use and transmission losses. The projected annual energy
requirements are converted to monthly energy and demand forecasts using historical and anticipated monthly
energy patterns and load factors.

2020 LOAD FORECAST



2. Load Forecast Process

2.1. Econometric Models
Econometric models are used for the majority of the member systems to forecast residential sales. In most
instances, two econometric models are developed for each cooperative. The first model relates the number
of historical residential consumers to factors that have been shown to influence their numbers in the past. The
second model is developed for the average annual usage per residential consumer. Multiplying the forecasts

of these two models developed the total residential energy forecast.

The small commercial modeling and other smaller consumer sectors are developed using econometric or
trending models. In some cases they may also be judgmental forecasts or a combination of the three. The
econometric models are based on regression analysis. Regression analysis is a statistical technique used to
identify a relationship between an observed event and other measured events that can be shown to be related.

These are known as the dependent and the independent variables, respectively.

Independent variables must be applicable to the members’ service territory and be of importance to the local
economy. This is the first step to ensure that the model will accurately explain the historical trends. This gives
the confidence that the same factors that have influenced previous trends will accurately reflect future

expectations.

The next step to determine if the model is acceptable is the combination of statistical results of the model.
The model statistics include the R-squared, adjusted R-squared, and basic statistical information. The R-
squared indicates the amount of variation of the dependent variable explained by the independent variables.
To show the impact of changes in the number of independent variables used in a model, an adjusted R-squared
is used, so the explained variation can be compared with the same dependent variable and different numbers
of independent variables.

The statistical significance of the explanatory variables used in the model is measured by a t-statistic. A t-
statistic (ignoring negative signs) of at least 2.0 would be required for a 95 percent level of confidence and

1.5 for a 90 percent level of confidence, depending upon the number of observations and variables used in
the model.

When residuals are not randomly distributed, a Cochrane-Orcutt transformation (AR term) can be computed
to develop an equation that does have randomly distributed residuals. After the variables are transformed by

adjusting the equation according to the value of the AR term, a new equation is developed.

The combination of the variables selected, model statistics and the forecasted results all are considered

together determine the validity of the forecast.

To develop the 2020 Load Forecast, the econometric software package MetrixND was used. Itron Energy
Forecasting Group (Itron) has developed, tested, and refined MetrixND for more than 15 years, providing a

proven track record in the real world of energy forecasting.

MetrixND uses powerful forecasting techniques, such as neural networks, multivariate regression, ARIMA,

and exponential smoothing to forecast annual and monthly sales and long-term demand patterns. It also allows

2020 LOAD FORECAST



rapid computations of G&T totals and power supply shares after the total forecast loads have been developed
for the Class C cooperative memberships. The implementation of the MetrixND product allows the forecasts
to be updated quickly with the most up to date information possible. This rapid forecast development tool
allows Basin Electric and its members too quickly and accurately model changes in macroeconomic and

microeconomic conditions to be reflected in the final results.

2.2, Energy Efficiency & Conservation
Basin Electric is committed to providing the lowest cost electricity available to its member systems. To
ensure their consumers use this resource as efficiently as possible, there have been numerous campaigns to
enable the consumer to make informed decisions on where to invest their money in order to receive the best
reward and increase their energy efficiency. The Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007 outlines
several improvements that can be implemented to ultimately save the consumers money. New standards were
established for a number of appliances including dishwashers, clothes washers, and dehumidifiers. By far, the
new lighting standards will have the most significant impact on residential electricity usage. The econometric
modeling process does an excellent job of capturing the efficiency trends as more efficient products are

introduced and begin to be used by consumers.

Basin Electric has utilized the regional average lighting saturation to determine the savings potential for the
lighting sector. The data used to compile the indices was obtained from Itron. Itron develops spreadsheets
used to assist companies that use a statistically adjusted end-use forecasting method. The data outlines the
typical household appliance usage for nine census regions across the United States. Basin Electric is using this

data to determine the lighting savings across our service territory.

2.3. Demand Side Management

Demand side management (DSM) can also have an effect on loads. DSM is the process of managing the
consumption of energy to optimize available and planned generation resources. According to the U.S.
Department of Energy, DSM refers to “actions taken on the customer’s side of the meter to change the
amount or timing of energy consumption.” Basin Electric and the membership have DSM programs which
offer a variety of measures that can reduce energy consumption and consumer energy expenses. DSM
strategies have the goal of maximizing end-use efficiency to avoid or postpone the construction of new
generating plants. Members operate their own DSM programs to manage their peak conditions, which in turn
reduces their billed demand component. This historical demand component, including the effects of DSM, is
used to model future electrical demand; furthermore, the model will assume this DSM scheme will be utilized
in the same capacity in a future period.

2.4. Sources for Explanatory Variables
A load forecast is to be as objective as possible. To that end, Basin Electric evaluates and utilizes various
credible sources to remove subjectivity and bias from historical and forecasted results providing more
objectivity and professionalism to the load forecast. Explanatory variables have a significant impact on the
resulting load forecasts.

2020 LOAD FORECAST



Explanatory variables can come in a variety of forms such as national, state, or county level economic and
demographic series, and local weather data. There are very specific production variables, drilling plans, and
other production related variables used when dealing with agriculture, energy related, or other commercial
loads.

The following is a list of the sources of the major external historical and projected explanatory variables used

in the forecasting system:

. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) — Local area weather data

. Woods and Poole Economics (W&P) — County level economic and demographic data

. IHS Global Insight (IHS Global) — Microeconomic data (county, metro, and state) and
macroeconomic data

. IHS Cambridge Energy Research Associates (IHS CERA) - Natural gas and oil pricing

. U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA), - Historical
micro demographic and employment data

. United States Census Bureau (Census) - Local area census data

. United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) - Agricultural production and
demographic data

. Food and Agricultural Policy Research Institute (FAPRI) - Agricultural production and
demographic data

. United States Department of Energy/Energy Information Agency (DOE/EIA) -

Energy expenditure and usage data

2.5. Explanatory Variables
Historical agricultural production and price data was obtained from the USDA and forecasted data was
obtained from the FAPRI 2018 U.S. baseline as well as the USDA baseline agricultural projections. FAPRI is
recognized for its expertise in agriculture analysis and forecasting. They also provide forecasts to the USDA

and Congressional committees for policy considerations.

The FAPRI baseline projection used is a result of a three-step process. It begins with macroeconomic
assumptions for the U.S. developed by IHS Global. The assumptions are used to develop a FAPRI preliminary
baseline, which is then distributed to a group of reviewers. The reviewers critique and comment on the
validity of the assumptions and the baseline projection. After receiving comments, the baseline projection is
revised and finalized. Forecast data is also obtained from the 2018 USDA baseline forecast and averaged with
the FAPRI data to create a consensus forecast for agricultural data.

The FAPRI and the USDA historical and projected data are used for forecasting some of the residential service

areas where farming and ranching have a big influence.

The 2020 Load Forecast uses three inflation indexes to deflate historical data and to project future inflation.
These indexes or deflators use the base 2018 equals 100. Those three indexes include:

e Producer Price Index (PPI) (all commodities): This index is used to deflate crude oil prices. Real

2018 dollar crude oil prices are used as a variable in the oil related models and forecasts and also in

2020 LoAD FORECAST



residential models in oil producing areas. The forecast for the PPI is obtained from the Energy
Information Administration’s 2019 Annual Energy Outlook (AEO).

® Gross Domestic Product - Implicit Price Deflator (GDP-IPD): This index is used to deflate all
agricultural monetary data from FAPRI to real 2018 dollars. The forecast is obtained from the
Congressional Budget Office.

® Personal Consumptions Expenditures - Implicit Price Deflator (PCE-IPD): This implicit price
deflator is used to deflate all non-FAPRI monetary data other than that covered by GDP-IPD and PPI
to real 2018 dollars. This includes such data as electricity prices, alternative fuels, personal income
and earnings. Also, it is used to convert current prime interest rates to real prime interest rates. This

index is also obtained from the Congressional Budget Office.

All weather data is obtained from the NOAA or other supplemental sources. This information is received for
first-order stations, as well as all cooperative stations within the geographic region. Forecasts for weather

data are assumed to be the simple average of 2004-2018 values.

Historical alternative fuel prices are obtained on a state level from the DOE’s, State Energy Data 2017 Price,
Consumption and Expenditures Data (SEDS). Basin Electric uses DOE projections of regional price forecasts
to develop projections of alternative fuel prices. This ratio is used to determine the viability of using

electricity for home heating against all other fuels available in the service territory of the cooperative.

W&P is used as sources for the economic and demographic historical and forecasted county data. IHS Global

is used for county, metro, state and national economic data.

IHS CERA is used for natural gas and oil prices for the energy related loads. Wood Mackenzie, IHS, and DOE

data are also used in the energy related sectors.

2020 LOAD FORECAST



3. Cooperative Narrative

2020 LOAD FORECAST



2020 LOAD FORECAST
*TRAVERSE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.*
SERVICE TERRITORY NARRATIVE

LOCATION AND SERVICE AREA

Headquarters: The headquarters of Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc. is located in west central Minnesota
in the city of Wheaton.

Service Area: The Cooperative serves all of Traverse County (1070 consumers — 2018), a portion of
western Big Stone County (417 consumers — 2018), Stevens County (82 consumers — 2018), Grant County
(194 consumers — 2018), and a portion of southern Wilkin County (206 consumers — 2018) in Minnesota.
It also serves the north half of Roberts County (1024 consumers — 2018) in South Dakota and a few farms
in the eastern portion of Marshall County (18 consumers — 2018) in South Dakota. We also serve 34 farms
on the North Dakota border. Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc. (MN 84 Traverse Electric) is a member
of East River Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. (So. Dak. 42 Minnehaha) and receives all of its power
requirements from this power cooperative.

Traverse Electric doesn’t serve any non-act beneficiary loads.

The service area of Traverse Electric Cooperative, Inc. is rural in nature and farming is the most contributing
factor to the economy of the area. The Cooperative is located in the Red River Valley and the terrain lends
itself to large farms. The major crops are corn, soybeans, small grain and sugar beets. The Cooperative
doesn’t serve any towns. We are under the territorial protection law of the Minnesota Public Service
Commission and the South Dakota Public Service Commission, so we don’t anticipate any changes in our
territory. The Cooperative doesn’t anticipate any abnormal growth as a result of farm loads, seasonal loads,
trailer development, residential development or apartments.

GEOGRAPHY

Topography and Geology: At the present time we do not have any geological surveys of MN 84 service
territory. Even without the geological surveys the areas where irrigation may develop and where the
aquifers can be anticipated, are as follows.

The water resources in MN 84 service territory consist of surface and ground water. The ground water in
the area should consist primarily of the Dakota and the Red River aquifers. The Dakota aquifer probably
underlies most of MN 84 service territory. The water is anticipated to be unsuitable for irrigation due to
the specific conductors and salinity content.



Natural Features: The Red River aquifer follows the Red River of the North Bois DeSioux River and its
tributaries. The aquifer can be found on either side of Lake Traverse. The water should be suitable for
irrigation. The aquifer’s greatest thickness and best possibility for irrigation should be near Lake Traverse,
the Red River of the North Bois DeSioux and the tributaries. The majority of irrigation that develops in
MN &4 service territory should develop from this aquifer.

CLIMATE

Climate and Weather: The May-August precipitation for MN 84 service territory ranges from 12.87 inches
in the west to about 12.34 inches in the east. The annual precipitation average for MN 84 service territory
is approximately 22.29 inches.

POPULATION

The service area total population was evaluated as a variable for this model as the historical data
indicates the number of residential consumers has been influenced by the population. This
variable addresses change in the number of consumers. Historical and projected population data
was obtained from W&P.

ECONOMY

The Cooperative’s total kWh sales has maintained a slight increased throughout the years.

Year Total Consumers Total kWh sold
2012 2,835 70,117,710
2013 2,909 85,239,318
2014 2,936 91,652,526
2015 2,970 92,838,832
2016 2,999 92,027,564
2017 3,017 98,198,173
2018 3,056 109,574,832



This classification includes all electricity sold for residential or domestic use such as farm and nonfarm
consumers living in rural areas. Although this group of consumers has grown since 2012, the average kWh

sold per consumer has also increased.

Year Farm & Residential  Seasonal
2012 2,314 414
2013 2,380 410
2014 2,405 411
2015 2,440 406
2016 2,470 408
2017 2,486 409
2018 2,514 415

TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES

Total Consumers Total KWH Sales
2,728 46,204,551
2,790 56,208,444
2,816 57,450,199
2,846 51,699,958
2,878 51,242,859
2,895 53,174,431
2,929 57,539,882

MEMBERSHIP (CONSUMER CLASSIFICATIONS)

Rate classification consi
General Service

Irrigation

Railroad

POWER SUPPLY

st of:

Seasonal Service
Small Commercial (Transformer sizes 50,75 and 100 kva)
Multi-Phase Service & Large Single Phase (Over 100 kva and under 500 kva - Single Phase)
Large Commercial (Over 500 kva and under 1,000 kva)
Large Commercial (1,000 kva and over)

LOAD MANAGEMENT

In 2019 or load management program consisted of the controlling of air conditioning, duel fuel, electric

Interruptible Heat, Heat Storage & Special Electric Heat
5/7 Interruptible

heat and hot water heaters. Total number of accounts listed under the program is 1,229.

10



HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENTS

SEASONAL:

The number of consumers in this classification has shown small growth over the last five years. We have
an existing RV Park that will be expanding by the end of 2019 and will be adding an additional 88 slots for
RV’s.

IRRIGATION:

We have only 12 consumers that irrigate. There is very little potential for more because of limited water
supplies of good quality water. The usage is projected to remain the same, but their use is so weather
sensitive that future estimations are difficult to determine.

SMALL COMMERCIAL:

Small commercial consumers were projected judgmentally by the Cooperative. In 2018, Traverse Electric
reported the average number of small commercial consumers to be 6. We project a decrease in this class
of consumers.

LARGE COMMERCIAL UNDER 1000 KVA

This group of users whose business has a load greater than 50 KVA and less than 1000 KV A has increased
only when our existing farm accounts have enlarged and had to be placed on our large commercial rate.
Consumers in this group include large hog operations, large grain dryer accounts, grain elevators, etc.

LARGE COMMERCIAL OVER 1000 KVA

Traverse Electric has 5 consumers within this classification, they consist of Marshall Dairy, Dollymount
Dairy, Campbell Dairy, Kinder Morgan and Wheaton-Dumont Elevator.

*In 2020 North Ottawa Dairy will be an addition to this rate.

GROWTH POTENTIAL

NEW LARGE LOADS:

Riverview Dairy is building a facility named North Ottawa Dairy located in North Ottawa Township in
Traverse County, Four miles North of the Wendell Substation in 2020. The new facility will house 11,500
head of cattle and a projected load of 1.8 MW.

1



4. Service Territory Characteristics

Facts relating to Traverse Electric Cooperative’s service territory are included in the following tables and
graphs to provide general information on their local economy and to support the load forecast. The
information includes general characteristics, End Use Survey results, demographic and economic data, and

agricultural statistics of the cooperative service territory.

This data is used in the load forecast process to define the economic and demographic structure of the local
economy. Periodic historical data is included since this data provides past trends of the local economy. The
data provides extensive information that relates both directly and indirectly to the modeling and forecasting

process.

The tables and graphs outline the general characteristics of Traverse Electric Cooperative’s service area,
reviewing the local economy, population, reported nonfarm employment along with various economic farm
data pertaining to the service area, End Use Survey information containing appliance, and air conditioning

saturations.

2020 LOAD FORECAST

12



Total Consumers

Traverse Electric Cooperative

General Characterization

RUS Form 7

2005

2010

2015

2018

Total Consumers

2,725

2,781

2,945

3,029

Residential Consumers

RUS Form 7

2005

2010

2015

2018

Rural Residential
Seasonal Residential

2,187 83%
443 17%

2,244
433

84%
16%

2,416 86%
409 14%

2,492 86%
413 14%

Residential Consumers

2,630 100%

2,677

100%

2,825 100%

2,905 100%

Residential Account Types

End Use Survey

2001

2005

2009

2013

Farm Residential & Operation

Farm Operation Only
Rural Residential Only

60%
1%
37%

Residential in City or Subdivision 1%

Other

1%

59%
3%
35%
1%
2%

58%
2%
37%
1%
2%

53%
4%
38%
1%
5%

Total Residential Account Types

100%

100%

100%

100%

Primary Residential Heating Systems

End Use Survey

2001

2005

2009

2013

Electric
Propane
Fuel Qil
Natural Gas
Other

27%
25%
22%

1%
25%

36%
29%
18%

0%
17%

46%
35%
10%
4%
5%

47%
38%
12%
0%
3%

Total Primary Heating Systems

100%

100%

100%

100%

Alternative Fuel Ratio

End Use Survey

2001

2005

2009

2013

Propane
Fuel Qil
Natural Gas

55%
45%
0%

60%
40%
0%

75%
20%
5%

75%
25%
0%

Counties Served

Major Counties

USDA Economic Type

Other Counties Served

Roberts, SD
Traverse

Farm
Farm

Big Stone
Grant
Marshall, SD

Stevens
Wilkin

Richland, ND

13




Major County Employment

Traverse Electric Cooperative
Economic / Demographic Structure

[BEA

2003 2008 2013 2018 W&P Est.
Total Employment 7,278 7,724 7,725 8,018
Farm Employment 1,397 1,293 1,397 1,344
Major County Population & Number of Households
Woods & Poole 2003 2008 2013 2018 W&P Est.
Total Population 6,437 13,511 5,757 5,516
Total Households 2,792 2,622 2,629 2,638
Total Pop. 65 & Over 1,719 1,589 1,481 1,499
Residents per Household Over 65 Years Old
End Use Survey 1997 2001 2005 2009
One Per Residence 15% 15% 14% 13%
Two Per Residence 17% 21% 21% 23%
County Poverty Statistics
[Persons in Poverty 2000 Census 2010 Census 2017 Est.
Roberts, SD 2,175 22% 2,034 20% 1,763 18%
Traverse 483 12% 455 13% 416 13%
2007 - 2017 Employment Analysis
Counties G;:‘:':h Fastest Growing 2007-2017 Largest in 2017
Professional, scientific, and technical services 2.84% State and local 23.78%
Roberts, SD 0.23% Manufacturing 2.76% Farm employment 14.75%
Wholesale trade 1.68% Retail trade 9.36%
Educational services 5.54% Farm employment 22.22%
Traverse 0.05%

Health care and social assistance 3.17%

Wholesale trade 2.74%

State and local 14.66%
Retail trade 9.94%

14



Traverse Electric Cooperative
Major Nonfarm Employment Sectors

Roberts, SD and Traverse Counties

Employees
6,000 +~ i Construction
& Manufacturing & Mining
HT&PU
M Trade
id Services
5,000 - ®@Government
"'
"f',v:vvv:
-
-
[
'v
| Tl = " 4
> . ; ] ‘. | ~ = =Cre T
4;000 & -_'v hd b1 - | Bir - b "vv
:‘.'-'vvv e |- - - bl &4 =] pog £
| r -l b4 hd
- wlw - - = .l -
s = El-T =I5
= bd b4 - — | -
wiw
- *
- *
B I L
b 4
3,000 LEEE L 1 ElRL
i i
EI%
= EEE <|xlziz '
tlx |
= = v
[ | T £ i
Firlelx v"?
3 ':"'v_vv »le
| s riw
2,000 1 M i L
"" w ] w! wiviwlw|¥
- 1
4 1 s 4 ‘—'"
- 'vv
Tislel> wiel™
TI=|- slelel>iziT
1,000
0 | 1 ] i o 1] ! & 1 §
(2] - m un ™~ o L) m un M~ [+)] — m un ~ (<)) L) (22} n ~ [=2] - (a2} wn M~
O ™~ N N N I 00 00 00 00 00 O OO O OO O ©O O O O © «wW «w « @«
a OO O OO OO OO OO O OO O 6O Oy OO OO OO O O O O O O O O O O
i - L] L] L] - - | L] - L] (o] - 4 i — ~ o ~N o o o (2] o o

Government: Includes federal civilian, military, state and local.

Services: Includes a variety of services for individuals, businesses, and government as well as
agricultural services, forestry, fishing, finance, insurance, and real estate services.

Trade: Includes wholesale and retail trade.

T&PU: Includes transportation and public utility.

Source: Woods & Poole Data

15



Traverse Electric Cooperative
Census of Agriculture - Statistics

Roberts, SD and Traverse Counties

General Statistics

Census of Agriculture 2002 2007 2012 2017
Total farm numbers 1,388 1,366 1,334 1,193
Average size (acres) 697 676 736 824
Total irrigated farms 20 20 8 25
Cattle & calves sold (farms) 435 396 344 274
Cattle & calves sold (head) 40,033 43,242 33,789 34,243
Hogs & pigs sold (farms) 55 42 19 29
Hogs & Pigs sold (head) 68,708 214,855 35,093 95,234
Wheat farms 511 373 244 166
Wheat harvested (bu) 4,740,297 2,703,056 1,945,323 1,454,042
Corn farms 542 574 557 567
Corn harvested (bu) 25,037,142 31,485,847 43,589,444 52,207,731
Soybean farms 709 661 599 592
Soybeans harvested (bu) 11,369,396 9,113,477 12,201,439 16,003,572
Barley harvested (bu) 282,024 61,406 10,740 37,412
Oats harvested (bu) 183,914 183,914 27,335 -
Sunflowers harvested (Ibs) 473,880 3,511,887 4,823,009 675,000
Average Age of Farm Operators
Census of Agriculture 2002 2007 2012 2017
Roberts, SD 55 57 56 57
Traverse 53 57 58 57
Farm Operators Principal Occupation Other Than Farming*
Census of Agriculture 2002 2007 2012 2017

Roberts, SD
Traverse

31%
40%

41%
39%

48%
42%

50%
16%

*50% or more of operators work time

16



Traverse Electric Cooperative

Farm Cash Receipts (Current $'s)

Roberts, SD and Traverse Counties

Total Farm Employment

wlwlwixisici=I=l=]+

1995 §

1997 |

1999 §
2001

Roberts, SD and Traverse Counties

Thousands
600,000 14 Crop Receipts
i Livestock and Product Receipts
500,000
400,000 +
300,000 +
200,000 +
100,000 -+ - : v
o I"- i b '. ) b L d ,
[22] lal o wn ~ (22} i m wn ™~ [«2] -
Vel ~ ™~ 0 o 00 00 00 O
[2)] )} [+)] [+)] (43} (<)} [=)] [=)] [+3] [«)] (=)} (=)}
- - —t Ll (] - L] - L] (] L] [
Employees
3,000
2,500 g '
2,000 | T
| .
1,500
1,000
500
0 | I | L}
[=)] =i o™ N ™~ [+3] L) [22] wn ~ [+2] -l
O M~ I N N KN 00 0 00 00 00 O
[«)] a O 0 O A O OO OO OO O O
o -t L] Ll - - L] o L] L] - i

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce

1993
1995
1997

1999 B
2001

2003
2005

2003

wl=l=Ixi=l+

2005 §

2007

2007 §

2009 |
2011

2009 §

2011 §

2013

o

E 04 54 b

2013 §

2015

2015

{

2017 &

2017

17



Traverse Electric Cooperative
Other End Use Survey Information

Appliance Saturation 2001 2005 2009 2013
Electric range 84% 86% 81% 92%
Gas range 14% 10% 17% 23%
Electric dryer 92% 90% 87% 95%
Gas dryer 4% 4% 6% 6%
Electric water heater 89% 88% 79% 95%
Natural gas water heater 0% 1% 4% 0%
Propane water heater 8% 8% 14% 4%
Refrigerator 98% 94% 89% 97%
Freezer 89% 85% 86% 95%
TV 98% 95% 90% 98%
Air exchanger 6% 9% 14% 30%
Hot tub or spa 6% 5% 9% 15%
Air Conditioning 2001 2005 2009 2013
Central Air 40% 39% 42% 45%
Electric Air to Air Heat Pump 15% 18% 17% 19%
Electric Ground Source Heat Pump 2% 2% 3% 3%
Window or Wall Unit 35% 32% 24% 23%
Other 1% 1% 2% 7%
None 7% 8% 5% 2%

18



Traverse Electric Cooperative
End Use Survey - Agriculture Statistics

Major Types Farm, Ranch or Other Operations

End Use Survey 1997 2001 2005 2009
Grain Farm 47% 3% 13% 8%
Percentage of grain farms: Wheat 23% 18%
Corn 50% 74%
Soybean 15% 6%
Flax 8%
Other 2% 34%
Livestock Ranching 38% 15% 53% 3%
Percentage ranch livestock: Cattle 12% 15%
Sheep 11% 67%
Horses 1% 6%
Other 1% 20%
Livestock Feedlot 12% 17% 3% 0%
Percentage feedlot livestock: Cattle 1% 1%
Sheep 48%
Hogs 65% 72% 2%
Other 80% 50%
Dairy 0% 15% 89% 65%
Poultry, Eggs 21% 2% 85%

Grain Dryer Saturation

End Use Survey 1997 2001 2005 2009
Propane or Natural Gas 97% 10% 70% 16%
Aeration & Natural Air 15% 37% 9% 27%
Low Temp Electric 23% 10% 16% 36%
[High Temp Electric 73% 15% 1% 2%

Livestock Electric Equipment

End Use Survey 1997 2001 2005 2009

Stock tank heater 1% 39% 1% 34%
Stock water system 25% 2% 26% 3%

19



5. Load Forecast Development

In order to obtain a total sales projection, individual forecasts are prepared for each consumer classification

and then added together. This section includes the following sales forecasts:

Residential Consumers

Residential Energy

Small Commercial

Large Commercial

Irrigation & Other Sectors

2020 LOAD FORECAST

Forecast of the number of residential consumers

Forecast of the energy usage per residential consumer and calculation of

residential energy sales

Forecast of the number of small commercial consumers and the total energy

sales

Forecast of the number of large commercial consumers and the total energy

sales

The following sectors are included where applicable: forecast of the number
of consumers and energy sales for irrigation, public street and highway sales,
other sales to public authorities, sales for resale to others or RUS, and

pumping stations sales

20



5.1. Residential Consumers Forecast
An econometric model was used to develop a forecast for the number of residential consumers. The model
developed takes into consideration the historical factors that statistically, demographically, and economically
influenced Traverse Electric Cooperative’s number of residential consumers and assumes the projected

number of consumers will be determined by the same factors.

Factors considered and evaluated included county populations, national agricultural production, county

household statistics, state land values, and county employment.

Residential Consumers Model Variable Discussion

Several demographic and economic variables were evaluated and the appropriate indicators were chosen for
their historical and statistical significance to determine a satisfactory model that represents the historical
trends for Traverse Electric Cooperative’s residential consumers. The variables that were evaluated include,

but are not limited to, the following listing below:

Total Population
The service area total population was evaluated as a variable for this model as the historical data indicates the
number of residential consumers has been influenced by the population. This variable addresses change in

the number of consumers. Historical and projected population data was obtained from W&P.

Total Employment

The total employment variable was evaluated for this model as the historical data indicates Traverse Electric
Cooperative’s number of residential has been influenced by total employment. This is believed to occur since
employment opportunities are a primary consideration when individuals decide to remain in an area or
relocate from another area. Total employment is indicative of the farm and nonfarm economies, and its
relation to Traverse Electric Cooperative’s number of residential consumers’ energy usage per residential

consumer.

Total employment consists of persons self-employed and employed by others in farming operations, as well
as in nonfarm industries such as the service, retail trade, manufacturing, and government industries. Historical

and projected total employment data was obtained from the W&P.

Household Income
The total income of a group of people living under one roof and sharing facilities was evaluated for this model
as the historical data indicates Traverse Electric Cooperative’s number of residential has been influenced by

household income.
Historical Data was deflated using the PCE-IPD to remove the effects of inflation on this variable.

National Agricultural Commodity Production and Price

The End Use Survey data indicates that Traverse Electric Cooperative’s consumers were engaged in farming
operations. Production levels enhance the ability and need to invest in electrical-consuming equipment for
grain drying and handling purposes. In addition, when production increases, income levels of the consumers

are also affected. The End Use Survey data was used to determine the appropriate commodity and/or pricing

2020 LOAD FORECAST

21



to use in the consumer model. Commodities and pricing that were available to determine the appropriate
indicators were: national beef, corn, soybean, pork, turkey, and broiler production and average pricing, along
with national egg production.

These factors along with local population and sector level employment may have been used to determine an
appropriate model to predict the future number of residential consumers. Other applicable economic,

demographic or agricultural factors may have been used to model and forecast consumers.

5.2. Residential Energy Use per Consumer Forecast
An econometric model was also used to develop a forecast for the residential energy use per consumer. The
model developed takes into consideration the historical factors that statistically, demographically, and
economically influenced Traverse Electric Cooperative’s energy use per residential consumer and assumes

the projected usage per consumer will be determined by the same factors.

Examples of factors that were considered and evaluated include electricity prices, alternative fuel prices,
national agricultural products, county household statistics, county employment, per capita income, and
weather variables.

Residential Energy use per Consumer Model Variable Discussion

Several variables were evaluated and the appropriate indicators were chosen for their historical and statistical
significance to determine a satisfactory model that represents the historical trends for Traverse Electric
Cooperative’s energy use per residential consumer. The variables that were evaluated include, but are not

limited to, the following listing below.

Electricity/Alternative Fuel Price Ratio

This variable addresses the competition between electricity and alternative fuels. This competition occurs in
space heating, water heating, cooking, clothes drying, and grain drying. The future price of these alternative
fuels and how they compare with Traverse Electric Cooperative 's electricity price will affect electrical
consumption. Traverse Electric Cooperative‘s End Use Survey indicates that propane, fuel oil, and natural
gas may be electricity’s major competitors. An electricity/alternative fuel price ratio based on the percentage

of consumers who use these fuels was selected for the model development.

Heating and Cooling Degree Days

Weather patterns have a significant effect on energy requirements due to energy uses such as heating, air
conditioning, and grain drying. Heating and cooling degree days are the summation of heating or cooling
degree days for the calendar year. One heating degree day is accumulated for each degree the daily mean
temperature is below 65 degrees Fahrenheit. One cooling degree day is accumulated for each degree the daily
mean temperature is above 65 degrees Fahrenheit.

The historical heating and cooling degree day weather data was obtained from the NOAA. Future years were
assumed to equal the previous 15 year average values for each weather station.

2020 LOAD FORECAST



These factors along with local population and sector level employment may have been used to determine an
appropriate model to predict the future energy usage per residential consumer. Other applicable economic,

demographic or agricultural factors may have been used to model and forecast energy usage per consumer.

5.3. Forecasted Total Residential Energy
The total residential energy forecast was developed using the above two models: The consumer model and
the energy per consumer model. Total residential energy consumption was developed by multiplying the

number of residential consumer results by the residential energy per consumer results.

5.4. Small Commercial
The Small Commercial classification consists of commercial accounts that are 1,000 kVA or less. This section
addresses the econometric models that forecast the small commercial consumers and energy use. The models
developed took into consideration the historical factors that statistically, demographically, and economically
influenced Traverse Electric Cooperative’s number of small commercial consumers and small commercial

energy use.

It has been observed that there is a strong positive relationship between the number of residential consumers
and small commercial consumers and energy use. This can be explained by the fact that for the small
commercial businesses such as retail and services businesses depend on these people as their consumers.

Residential consumers appear to be a good index of buying power.

Forecasted results were reviewed by the member to determine if the result meets their expectations. If the
model results did not produce acceptable results, Traverse Electric Cooperative prepared a judgmental

forecast for the small commercial sector.

5.5. Large Commercial
The Large Commercial classification consists of commercial accounts that are 1,000 kVA or larger. Forecasted
results were also reviewed by the member to determine if the forecast met the local expectations. If the
forecast did not produce the desired results, the member prepared a judgmental forecast for the large

commercial sector.

The large commercial sector was generally modeled using national economic variables. This is indicative of
local contribution to the national economy. Real gross domestic product may have been used for the large

commercial consumer model. The following is a brief description of this variable.

Real Gross Domestic Product

Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is what is made in the United States. It is total output (production) of
goods and services by consumers, businesses, or governments. It includes consumer goods (personal
consumption expenditures (PCE) durables + nondurables + services) + investment goods (residential
structures + nonresidential structures + capital equipment + inventory investment) + government purchases
of goods and services + exports - imports (since they were counted already when sold as consumer goods
etc.). This is measured indirectly off of final products. Since this is a real variable, inflationary effects have

been removed from this calculation.

2020 LOAD FORECAST

23



This factor along with local population and sector level employment may have been used to determine an
appropriate model to predict the future Large Commercial consumers and energy usage. Other applicable
economic, demographic or agricultural factors may have been used to model and forecast consumers and

energy .

5.6. Irrigation
Irrigation sales have fluctuated during the historical period due to the weather, the state of the farm economy,
and government programs. Traverse Electric Cooperative prepared a judgmental forecast for the projected

irrigation consumers and associated energy sales.

5.7. Other Sectors
The sales in this category account for a small percentage of Traverse Electric Cooperative’s total annual sales,
and mainly include the kWh sales from street light usage across the Electric service territory.

2020 LOAD FORECAST

24



6. Load Forecast Details

6.1. Annual Energy Sales

Traverse Electric Cooperative’s historical and projected annual energy sales by consumer classification are

shown in the following graph and table:

Annual Energy Sales

MWh

Historical Projected
160,000 -
|
|
|
140,000 | ™ Irrigation :
i Large Commercial }
|
120000 - HSmall Commercial : ',Tv{'r'ﬁ-e-'
’ H .' I 3 v
H Residential __'.f |
100,000 - 1
M
80,000 - | ‘r i
xv 'I} =l*irlr "_-,v-v'
= .'I' - {v
.{1 ’_' |
60,000 | . (RN
4 s w]” ?
!
?
40,000 |
20,000 [
. |
8838383823322 IFILIIIFIN
C O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O o o o
N N AN NN N N NN N N NN NN N N NN
2020 LOAD FORECAST

-

25



Traverse Electric Cooperative
System Energy Sales by Consumer Classification (MWh)

Total Small Large Total

Year Residential Commercial Commercial Irrigation Sales|

2000 42,471 342 14,045 108 56,966

2001 43,479 406 11,356 183 55,424

2002 45,339 471 12,823 115 58,748

2003 43,949 399 9,370 152 53,870

2004 44,921 357 10,977 194 56,449

'f' 2005 45,777 369 10,987 70 57,203
! 2006 46,385 265 10,472 233 57,355
s 2007 48,831 292 10,567 186 59,876
; 2008 50,715 243 18,972 181 70,111
r 2009 53,858 306 22,855 157 77,176
i 2010 52,010 203 22,365 99 74,677
¢ 2011 50,308 135 21,447 116 72,006
a 2012 46,205 110 23,538 265 70,118
| 2013 56,208 232 28,570 229 85,239
2014 57,450 262 33,798 142 91,652

2015 51,700 185 40,736 218 92,839

2016 51,243 12,741 27,823 220 92,027

2017 53,174 13,835 31,029 160 98,198

2018 57,540 14,003 36,934 98 108,575

2019 60,894 14,094 37,420 92 112,500

2020 58,848 13,981 40,580 92 113,501

2021 59,114 14,099 46,195 92 119,500

2022 59,486 14,222 46,826 92 120,626

2023 59,794 14,345 47,457 92 121,688

2024 60,078 14,332 47,878 92 122,380

2025 60,254 14,457 48,298 92 123,101

2026 60,517 14,446 48,929 92 123,984

2027 60,807 14,572 49,350 92 124,821

2028 61,121 14,562 49,771 92 125,546

2029 61,423 14,690 50,402 92 126,607

2030 61,541 14,818 50,823 92 127,274

P 2031 61,709 14,810 51,243 92 127,854
v 2032 61,841 14,939 51,875 92 128,747
2 2033 61,992 14,931 52,295 92 129,310
i 2034 62,179 15,062 52,716 92 130,049
" 2035 62,369 15,055 53,137 92 130,653
t 2036 62,523 15,186 53,557 92 131,358
e 2037 62,741 15,180 53,978 92 131,991
d 2038 62,952 15,312 54,399 92 132,755
2039 63,159 15,306 54,820 92 133,377

2040 63,377 15,439 55,240 92 134,148

2041 63,591 15,434 55,661 92 134,778

2042 63,819 15,430 56,082 92 135,423

2043 64,031 15,563 56,503 92 136,189

2044 64,251 15,559 56,923 92 136,825

2045 64,448 15,692 57,344 92 137,576

2046 64,644 15,826 57,765 92 138,327

2047 64,862 15,823 58,186 92 138,963

2048 65,052 156,957 58,606 92 139,707

2049 65,265 156,954 59,237 92 140,548

2050 65,451 16,089 59,658 92 141,290

Historical Average Compound Growth Rates: 2000-2018 3.65% 2014-2018 4.33%
Projected Average Compound Growth Rates: 2019-2050 0.74% 2019-2023 1.98%

26



6.2. Annual Energy Requirements
Traverse Electric Cooperative’s historical and projected annual total system energy requirements by
consumer classification, which includes Traverse Electric Cooperative’s own use and losses, are shown in the

following graph and table:

Annual Energy Requirements

MWh Historical Projected

160,000 -

140,000 1 =O0wnUse & Losses

H Irrigation
&d Large Commercial o o L e =
120,000 - W |
i Small Commercial 2 B
r -
H Residential 1
100,000 - !
v - 1
1zl
]
- Tl |
80,000 - e i) LEEEEEEEEEL
A H M . B 5 S Y
11 - L] =1 B4 b 4 b

60,000 M gl ]

40,000
20,000
0
o O o o o o~ Y ©C o O o) o
O O O 0O O O O O O O 0O O 0O O O O O O 0O 0O O 0 o O O O
NN AN NN NN AN AN N NN N NN N NN NN NN NN NN

2020 LOAD FORECAST

27



Traverse Electric Cooperative

System Energy Requirements by Consumer Classification (MWh)

Total

Total Small Large Total Own Use Energy|

Year Residential Commercial Commercial Irrigation Sales & lLosses Requirements
2000 42,471 342 14,045 108 56,966 4,133 61,099
2001 43,479 406 11,356 183 55,424 3,756 59,180
2002 45,339 471 12,823 115 58,748 3,372 62,120
2003 43,949 399 9,370 152 53,870 4,200 58,070
2004 44,921 357 10,977 194 56,449 3,917 60,366

'j' 2005 45,777 369 10,987 70 57,203 5,068 62,271
I 2006 46,385 265 10,472 233 57,355 4,409 61,764
S 2007 48,831 292 10,567 186 59,876 4,878 64,754
; 2008 50,715 243 18,972 181 70,111 6,697 76,808
r 2009 53,858 306 22,855 157 77,176 5,773 82,949
| 2010 52,010 203 22,365 99 74,677 4,753 79,430
c 20M1 50,308 135 21,447 116 72,006 5,961 77,967
a 2012 46,205 110 23,538 265 70,118 5,629 75,747
| 2013 56,208 232 28,570 229 85,239 5,246 90,485
2014 57,450 262 33,798 142 91,652 5,517 97,169
2015 51,700 185 40,736 218 92,839 4,079 96,918
2016 51,243 12,741 27,823 220 92,027 5,380 97,407
2017 53,174 13,835 31,029 160 98,198 5,849 104,047
2018 57,540 14,003 36,934 98 108,575 6,110 114,685
2019 60,894 14,094 37,420 92 112,500 5,758 118,258
2020 58,848 13,981 40,580 92 113,501 5,635 119,136
2021 59,114 14,099 46,195 92 119,500 5,696 125,196
2022 59,486 14,222 46,826 92 120,626 5,764 126,390
2023 59,794 14,345 47,457 92 121,688 5,828 127,516
2024 60,078 14,332 47,878 92 122,380 5,870 128,250
2025 60,254 14,457 48,298 92 123,101 5,914 129,015
2026 60,517 14,446 48,929 92 123,984 5,967 129,951
2027 60,807 14,572 49,350 92 124,821 6,018 130,839
2028 61,121 14,562 49,771 92 125,546 6,062 131,608
2029 61,423 14,690 50,402 92 126,607 6,126 132,733
2030 61,541 14,818 50,823 92 127,274 6,166 133,440

P 2031 61,709 14,810 51,243 92 127,854 6,202 134,056
' 2032 61,841 14,939 51,875 92 128,747 6,256 135,003
° 2033 61,992 14,931 52,295 92 129,310 6,290 135,600
i 2034 62,179 15,062 52,716 92 130,049 6,334 136,383
= 2035 62,369 15,055 53,137 92 130,653 6,371 137,024
t 2036 62,523 16,186 63,657 92 131,358 6,414 137,772
e 2037 62,741 15,180 53,978 92 131,991 6,452 138,443
d 2038 62,952 15,312 54,399 92 132,755 6,498 139,253
2039 63,159 15,306 54,820 92 133,377 6,536 139,913
2040 63,377 15,439 55,240 92 134,148 6,583 140,731
2041 63,591 15,434 55,661 92 134,778 6,621 141,399
2042 63,819 15,430 56,082 92 135,423 6,660 142,083
2043 64,031 15,563 56,503 92 136,189 6,706 142,895
2044 64,251 15,559 56,923 92 136,825 6,745 143,570
2045 64,448 15,692 57,344 92 137,576 6,790 144,366
2046 64,644 15,826 57,765 92 138,327 6,836 145,163
2047 64,862 15,823 58,186 92 138,963 6,874 145,837
2048 65,052 15,957 58,606 92 139,707 6,919 146,626
2049 65,265 15,954 59,237 92 140,548 6,970 147,518
2050 65,451 16,089 58,658 92 141,290 7,015 148,305
Historical Average Compound Growth Rates: 2000-2018 3.56% 2014-2018 4.23%
Projected Average Compound Growth Rates: 2019-2050 0.73% 2019-2023 1.90%

28



6.3. Annual Number of Consumers
Traverse Electric Cooperative’s historical and projected annual energy sales by consumer classification are

shown in the following graph and table:

Annual Number of Consumers

Consumers Historical Projected
4,000
|
i Irrigation :
3,500 & Large Commercial : o
H Small Commercial I ._'_.-:::Z:::"'t
H Residential L =;;=;=:‘:‘-'?'_'_'ft EErrrT
3,000 - okl SR
2,500 NN
2,000
1,500
1,000
500
0
883838382232 IRAIILYTIIIT B BIITI gL e
O O O O © O O O O O O 0O 0O 0O O O O OO0 0o o O 0 o O o
AN AN NN AN NN N NN N NN N N N N N N N N NN N NN

2020 LOAD FORECAST

29



Traverse Electric Cooperative
Number of Consumers by Consumer Classification

Total Small Large Total

Year Residential Commercial Commercial Irrigation Consumers

2000 2,536 15 56 10 2,617

2001 2,536 16 59 9 2,620

2002 2,545 15 62 9 2,631

2003 2,575 15 67 ] 2,666

2004 2,508 15 70 9 2,692

H 2005 2,630 14 72 10 2,726
! 2006 2,630 13 72 10 2,725
N 2007 2,639 13 73 9 2,734
; 2008 2,647 11 79 9 2,746
; 2009 2,658 11 82 9 2,760
i 2010 2,677 10 85 9 2,781
c 2011 2,678 9 85 9 2,781
a 2012 2,704 8 86 9 2,807
I 2013 2,736 8 92 10 2,846
2014 2,790 8 101 1 2,910

2015 2,825 7 102 1 2,945

2016 2,856 104 3 12 2,975

2017 2,878 105 4 12 2,999

2018 2,905 105 7 12 3,029

2019 2,916 106 10 12 3,044

2020 2,928 106 13 12 3,059

2021 2,939 107 16 12 3,074

2022 2,950 108 19 12 3,089

2023 2,962 109 22 12 3,105

2024 2,973 109 24 12 3,118

2025 2,984 110 26 13 3,133

2026 2,996 110 29 13 3,148

2027 3,007 111 31 13 3,162

2028 3,019 111 33 13 3,176

2029 3,030 112 36 13 3,191

2030 3,041 113 38 13 3,205

P 2031 3,053 113 40 13 3,219
U 2032 3,064 114 43 13 3,234
o 2033 3,075 114 45 13 3,247
i 2034 3,087 115 47 13 3,262
= 2035 3,008 115 49 13 3,275
t 2036 3,109 116 51 13 3,289
e 2037 3,121 116 53 13 3,303
d 2038 3,132 117 55 13 3,317
2039 3,144 117 57 14 3,332

2040 3,155 118 59 14 3,346

2041 3,166 118 61 14 3,359

2042 3,178 118 63 14 3,373

2043 3,189 119 65 14 3,387

2044 3,201 119 67 14 3,401

2045 3,212 120 69 14 3415

2046 3,223 121 71 14 3,429

2047 3,235 121 73 14 3,443

2048 3,246 122 75 14 3,457

2049 3,258 122 78 14 3,472

2050 3,269 123 80 14 3,486

Historical Average Compound Growth Rates: 2000-2018 0.82% 2014-2018 1.01%
Projected Average Compound Growth Rates: 2019-2050 0.44% 2019-2023 0.50%

30



6.4. Annual and Seasonal Demand, Annual Energy and Load Factors
Traverse Electric Cooperative’s historical and projected annual and seasonal peaks, along with annual energy

and load factors, is shown in the following graph and tables:

Seasonal Peak Demand

kw .
Historical Projected
30,000 -
—
25,000 —
20,000 .
1
I
I
l
15,000 I
i
!
|
[
|
10,000 |
I
i
I
| @ Symmer
5,000 I
: S Winter
I
I
I
OIIIII IIIIIIIIIIIfIle-I'Illnll | B IR DI BEN RN RENN BE BN BN S ) T 1
S E-E- R E-E-EEEEE-EEEEEEEEE -
O O O O O O O O O O 0O 0O O 0O O O 0O O O O O 0 O o o o
N N N N NN N N N N N N NN AN NN N N N NN N N N N N
2020 LOAD FORECAST

3



Traverse Electric Cooperative

Seasonal Peak Demand (kW)

Winter Seasonal Peak

Summer Seasonal Peak

Peak Percent Peak Percent

Year Demand Change Year Demand Change
1999-2000 11,147 -6.06 2000 9,617 473
2000-2001 11,961 7.30 2001 10,227 6.34
2001-2002 9,684 -19.87 2002 11,298 10.47
2002-2003 10,845 14.20 2003 8,110 -28.22
2003-2004 11,012 0.61 2004 9,733 20.01

H 2004-2005 12,316 11.84 H 2005 13,093 34.52
' 2005-2006 11,310 -8.17 ' 2006 13,196 0.79
S 2006-2007 11,991 6.02 S 2007 11,224 -14.94
; 2007-2008 13,260 1058 ; 2008 14,501 29.20
r 2008-2009 16,950 20.29 r 2009 11,300 -22.07
i 2009-2010 17,177 7.69 i 2010 11,569 2.38
c 2010-2011 15,483 -9.86 c 2011 12,928 11.75
a 2011-2012 13,861 -10.48 a 2012 10,991 -14.98
| 2012-2013 16,200 16.87 | 2013 19,426 76.74
2013-2014 18,500 14.20 2014 17,975 -7.47
2014-2015 18,382 -0.64 2015 13,002 -27.67
2015-2016 16,190 -11.92 2016 17,547 34.96
2016-2017 18,878 16.60 2017 23,632 34.68
2017-2018 21,085 11.69 2018 19,788 -16.27
2018-2019 18,991 -9.93 2019 22,037 11.37
2019-2020 20,722 9.12 2020 21,703 -1.62
2020-2021 20,338 -1.86 2021 22,314 2.82
2021-2022 20,936 294 2022 22,525 0.95
2022-2023 21,136 0.96 2023 22,726 0.89
2023-2024 21,328 0.91 2024 22,854 0.57
2024-2025 21,451 0.58 2025 22978 0.54
2025-2026 21,566 0.54 2026 23,140 0.70
2026-2027 21,720 0.71 2027 23,295 0.67
2027-2028 21,867 0.68 2028 23,429 0.58
2028-2029 21,995 0.58 2029 23,635 0.88
2029-2030 22,192 0.89 2030 23,741 0.45

P 2030-2031 22,290 0.44 P 2031 23,833 0.39
f 2031-2032 22,375 0.38 ! 2032 23,992 0.67
) 2032-2033 22,524 0.67 2 2033 24,085 0.39
! 2033.203 22,611 0.39 1 a0a 24,216 0.54
c 2034-2035 22,735 0.55 & 2035 24,322 0.44
t 2035-2036 22,834 044 t 2036 24,451 0.53
e 2036-2037 22,956 0.53 e 2037 24,565 0.47
d 2037-2038 23,065 0.47 d 2038 24,708 0.58
2038-2039 23,201 0.59 2039 24,823 0.46
2039-2040 23,309 047 2040 24,970 0.60
2040-2041 23,451 0.61 2041 25,089 0.48
2041-2042 23,564 0.48 2042 25,210 0.48
2042-2043 23,680 0.49 2043 25,357 0.58
2043-2044 23,820 0.59 2044 25,477 0.47
2044-2045 23,934 0.48 2045 25,620 0.56
2045-2046 24,071 0.57 2046 25,763 0.56
2046-2047 24,208 0.57 2047 25,882 0.46
2047-2048 24,321 0.47 2048 26,024 0.55
2048-2049 24 A57 0.56 2049 26,186 0.62
2049-2050 24,611 0.63 2050 26,327 0.54
Average Compound Growth Rates: Historical Winter Demand: 2000-2018 3.60%
Projected Winter Demand: 2019-2050 0.84%

Historical Summer Demand: 2000-2018 4.09%

Projected Summer Demand: 2019-2050 0.58%

32



Traverse Electric Cooperative
Annual System Energy Requirements

Peak Demand, Energy and Load Factors

Annual Annual Annual

Peak Percent Energy Percent Load Factor

Year (kW) Change (MWh) Change Percent
2000 11,065 -6.75 61,099 0.57 63.03
2001 11,961 8.10 59,180 -3.14 56.48
2002 11,298 -5.54 62,121 4.97 62.77
2003 10,248 -9.29 58,071 -6.52 64.69
2004 12,316 20.18 60,366 3.95 55.95
H 2005 13,093 6.31 62,269 3.15 54.29
I 2006 13,196 0.79 61,761 -0.82 53.43
S 2007 11,991 013 64,756 4.85 61.65
; 2008 15,950 33.02 76,808 18.61 54,97
r 2009 17,177 7.69 82,950 8.00 55.13
i 2010 15,820 -7.90 79,429 -4.24 5§7.32
c 2011 15,483 -2.13 77,967 -1.84 57.48
a 2012 14,392 -7.05 75,748 -2.85 60.08
| 2013 19,426 34.98 90,486 19.46 63.17
2014 18,500 -4.77 97,170 7.39 59.96
2015 16,639 -10.06 96,918 -0.26 66.49
2016 18,878 13.46 97,408 0.51 58.90
2017 23,632 25.18 104,048 6.82 50.26
2018 19,788 -16.27 114,685 10.22 66.16
2019 22,037 11.37 118,258 3.12 61.26
2020 21,703 -1.62 119,137 0.74 62.67
2021 22,314 2.82 125,194 5.08 64.05
2022 22,525 0.95 126,390 0.96 64.05
2023 22,726 0.89 127,516 0.89 64.05
2024 22,854 0.57 128,250 0.58 64.06
2025 22,978 0.54 129,018 0.60 64.10
2026 23,140 0.70 129,952 0.72 64.11
2027 23,295 0.67 130,840 0.68 64.12

2028 23,429 0.58 131,608 0.59 64.12
2029 23,635 0.88 132,734 0.86 64.11

2030 23,741 0.45 133,441 0.53 64.16
P 2031 23,833 0.39 134,055 0.46 64.21
o 2032 23,992 0.67 135,003 0.71 64.24
© 2033 24,085 0.39 135,600 0.44 64.27
i 2034 24,216 0.54 136,383 0.58 64.29
c 2035 24,322 0.44 137,026 0.47 64.31
t 2036 24,451 0.53 137,773 0.55 64.32
e 2037 24,565 0.47 138,444 0.49 64.33
d 2038 24,708 0.58 139,254 0.59 64.34
2039 24,823 0.46 139,912 0.47 64.34

2040 24,970 0.60 140,729 0.58 64.34

2041 25,089 0.48 141,400 048 64.34

2042 25,210 0.48 142,083 0.48 64.34

2043 25,357 0.58 142,894 0.57 64.33
2044 25,477 0.47 143,570 0.47 64.33

2045 25,620 0.56 144,367 0.56 64.33

2046 25,763 0.56 145,164 0.55 64.32

2047 25,882 0.46 145,837 0.46 64.32

2048 26,024 0.55 146,626 0.54 64.32
2049 26,186 0.62 147,518 0.61 64.31
2050 26,327 0.54 148,303 0.53 64.31

Average Compound Growth Rates: Historical Demand: 2000-2018 3.28%

Projected Demand: 2019-2050 0.58%

Historical Energy: 2000-2018 3.56%

Projected Energy: 2019-2050 0.73%

33



6.5. 2019 Update vs. 2020 Load Forecast Comparisons
Traverse Electric Cooperative’s annual system peak demand comparisons from the 2019 update and 2020
Load Forecasts are shown in the following graph and table:

Annual System Peak Demand Comparison

kw

Historical Projected
30,000 -
|
|
|
! =
25,000 - :
|
20,000 /
|
15,000 |
[
|
[
|
|
10,000 :
: @mua» 2019 Update
|
| 2020 Forecast
5,000 - !
|
|
|
|
|
0 I O O I I I | '“'l_l_l_l_l_lﬁ_‘_lﬁ_'i_l_rTﬂ_l_lﬁﬁ_l_!_i_l_!_r_ﬁ_l_r'rﬁ"{'rT T 1 rr1
- - - R E-EEEEEEEEEEEEEREEE RN
O O O O O O O 0O O O O 0O 0O 0O O O O O O O O O o 0 oo o
N &N &N AN AN NN N N N N NN N NN NN N NN NN N NN
2020 LOAD FORECAST



Traverse Electric Cooperative
Annual System Peak Demand Comparison (kW)

2020 Forecast

Annual Percent

Year Demand Change
2000 11,065 8.75
2001 11,961 8.10
2002 11,298 -5.54
2003 10,248 -9.29
2004 12,316 20.18
H 2005 13,093 6.31
I 2006 13,196 0.79
S 2007 11,991 913
; 2008 15,950 33.02
. 2009 17,177 7.69
i 2010 15,820 -7.90
c 2011 15,483 213
a 2012 14,392 7.05
| 2013 19,426 34.98
2014 18,500 4.77
2015 16,639 -10.06
2016 18,878 13.46
2017 23,632 25.18
2018 19,788 -16.27
2019 22,037 11.37
2020 21,703 -1.52
2021 22,314 2.82
2022 22,525 0.95
2023 22726 0.89
2024 22,854 0.57
2025 22,978 0.54
2026 23,140 0.70
2027 23,295 0.67
2028 23429 0.58
2029 23,635 0.88
2030 23,741 0.45
P 2031 23,833 0.39
" 2032 23,992 0.67
9 2033 24,085 0.39
i 2034 24216 0.54
¢ 2035 24,322 0.44
{ 2036 24,451 0.53
e 2037 24,565 0.47
d 2038 24,708 0.58
2039 24,823 0.46
2040 24,970 0.60
2041 25,089 0.48
2042 25,210 0.48
2043 25,357 0.58
2044 25477 0.47
2045 25,620 0.56
2046 25,763 0.56
2047 25,882 0.46
2048 26,024 0.55
2049 26,186 0.62
2050 26,327 0.54

Average Compound Growth Rates:

Difference 2019 Update
2020 Forecast Annual Percent
= 2019 Update Year Demand Change
0 2000 11,065 -6.75
0 2001 11,961 8.10
0 2002 11,298 -5.54
0 2003 10,248 -9.29
0 H 2004 12,316 20.18
0 i 2005 13,093 6.31
0 s 2006 13,196 0.79
0 t 2007 11,991 -9.13
0 [¢] 2008 15,950 33.02
0 r 2009 17477 7.69
0 i 2010 15,820 -7.90
0 ¢ 2011 15,483 -2.13
0 a 2012 14,392 -7.05
0 I 2013 19,426 34.98
0 2014 18,500 477
0 2015 16,639 -10.06
0 2016 18,878 13.46
0 2017 23,632 25.18
2,702 2018 17,086 -27.70
4,678 2019 17,359 1.60
4,381 2020 17,322 -0.21
4,914 2021 17,400 0.45
4,953 2022 17,572 0.99
5,017 2023 17,709 0.78
4,999 2024 17,855 0.83
5,015 2025 17,963 0.60
5,037 2026 18,103 0.78
5,047 2027 18,248 0.80
5,027 2028 18,402 0.84
5,075 2029 18,560 0.86
5,054 p 2030 18,687 0.69
5,008 r 2031 18,825 0.74
5,028 o 2032 18,964 0.74
4,970 ] 2033 19,116 0.80
4,945 e 2034 19,271 0.81
4,890 c 2035 19,432 0.83
4,852 t 2036 19,598 0.86
4,789 e 2037 19,776 0.91
4,756 d 2038 19,952 0.89
4,689 2039 20,134 0.91
4,648 2040 20,322 0.94
4,575 2041 20,514 0.94
4,506 2042 20,704 0.93
4,460 2043 20,897 0.93
4,383 2044 21,094 0.94
4,328 2045 21,292 0.94
4,272 2046 21,491 0.94
4,187 2047 21,695 0.95
4,128 2048 21,896 0.93
4,081 2049 22,105 0.95
4,010 2050 22,317 0.96
Historical 2019 Update: 2000-2017 4.56%
Projected 2019 Update: 2018-2050 0.84%
Historical 2020 Forecast: 2000-2018 3.28%
Projected 2020 Forecast: 2019-2050 0.58%

35



7. System Requirements
Monthly System Demand and Energy Requirements

Projected annual energy requirements are converted to monthly energy and demand forecasts using historical
and anticipated monthly energy patterns and load factors. Historical weather patterns are used for
determining what affected previous monthly energy and load factor distributions. For each of these, an
econometric model using historical per unit patterns and load factors were developed based on actual weather
patterns. These patterns were then evaluated for the best fit and applied to forecast projections to allocate
annual forecasts to monthly values as well as the load factors used to determine monthly demand purchases.
This section contains all monthly demand and energy purchases determined by historical monthly energy and

demand patterns and are based on 15 year average weather variables.

2020 LOAD FORECAST

36



Traverse Electric Cooperative

Demand Purchases

kw

Projected

Historical

0s0¢

80T

910t

147414

[440]4

ovoc

8€0¢

9€0t

€0C

[4014

(113114

870¢Z

970

{414

[44074

0coe

810¢

910¢

10¢

[A1114

010¢C

800¢

900¢

00¢

00t

30,000 -

25,000 -

20,000 -

15,000 -

10,000 -

5,000 -

oooz

37



Traverse Electric Cooperative
Demand Purchases (kW)

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2000 10,687 8,534 7,664 6,643 6,808 6,769 9,532 8,460 6,319 9,617 9,271 11,065
2001 11,961 9,853 9,023 7,673 6,352 7,384 8,920 8,345 6,964 10,227 8,658 9,168
2002 9,584 8,369 9,101 7,776 6,076 8,204 8,398 6,858 8,408 11,298 10,945 9,580
2003 10,248 9,720 9,212 8,512 5,409 7.427 6,946 7,934 7,134 8,110 9,182 9,665
H 2004 11,012 10,235 8,982 6,850 5,282 6,214 5,989 6,807 6,339 9,733 11,197 12,316
j 2005 11,249 10,807 9,749 7,780 7,575 8,091 7422 8,469 7,225 13,093 10,919 11,310
g 2006 10,222 10,843 9,010 7,010 7,778 7,368 8,420 7,466 6,268 13,196 11,750 11,845
t 2007 11,688 11,991 10,015 9,353 6,241 7,636 8,299 7,001 7,783 11,224 11,839 11,546
o 2008 13,260 13,185 11,503 8,523 8,360 7,760 8,246 9,484 9,838 14,501 15,950 14,248
r 2009 15,107 14,126 13,810 10,182 7,639 8,533 8,057 8,787 8,037 11,300 16,257 17,177
i 2010 15,820 12,740 11,048 9,643 8,444 8,302 8,873 9,277 7,759 11,569 12,922 15,100
2011 15,483 13,677 12,358 8,720 7,707 9,435 8,962 9,904 8,654 12,928 11,621 12,404
€ 2012 13,861 13,088 10,088 8,225 7,738 8,506 10,072 9,436 8,486 10,991 11,431 14,392
a2 2013 16,200 14,410 14,345 11,222 8,942 8,910 10,295 10,026 9,442 19,426 18,301 16,732
I 2014 18,500 15,916 15,858 10,952 9,554 9,456 9,794 9,900 9,174 17,975 18,382 17,196
2015 16,639 15,000 16,245 12,918 9,948 11,280 11,245 11,501 11,503 13,002 13,294 15,567
2016 16,190 14,882 13,032 12,461 8,923 11,179 11,514 8,031 8,857 17,547 14,264 18,878
2017 16,827 14,352 14,570 12,395 10,823 11,660 11,141 10,844 11,655 23,632 21,085 17,750
2018 17,473 15,997 14,194 14,814 12,258 12,389 13,740 13,738 12,925 19,788 17,986 18,991
2019 18,924 17,625 15,659 14,910 12,286 13,475 13,797 12,301 12,727 22,037 19,749 20,722
2020 17,947 16,045 14,849 13,798 12,313 13,426 13,766 12,325 12,669 21,703 19,460 20,338
2021 19,118 17,830 15,991 14,960 12,832 13,971 14,306 12,851 13,205 22,314 20,069 20,936
2022 19,297 17,992 16,134 15,086 12,931 14,083 14,426 12,853 13,309 22,525 20,260 21,136
2023 19,468 18,146 16,271 15,206 13,027 14,190 14,540 13,051 13,408 22,726 20,442 21,328
2024 19,577 17,708 16,358 15,283 13,088 14,259 14,613 13,114 13,471 22,854 20,559 21,451
2025 19,678 18,334 16,437 15,351 13,142 14,320 14,681 13,171 13,527 22,978 20,669 21,566
2026 19,814 18,456 16,546 15,446 13,218 14,405 14,773 13,248 13,606 23,140 20,816 21,720
2027 19,946 18,575 16,651 15,538 13,291 14,488 14,861 13,324 13,682 23,295 20,957 21,867
2028 20,059 18,126 16,741 15,618 13,354 14,559 14,937 13,389 13,747 23,429 21,078 21,995
2029 20,235 18,837 16,883 15,744 13,453 14,669 15,054 13,489 13,851 23,635 21,265 22,192
P 2030 20,321 18,911 16,949 15,799 13,497 14,721 15,112 13,5637 13,896 23,741 21,360 22,290
r 2031 20,393 18,974 17,005 15,846 13,535 14,764 15,161 13,578 13,935 23,833 21,441 22,375
o 2032 20,525 18,526 17,109 15,936 13,607 14,846 15,250 13,653 14,009 23,992 21,584 22,524
j 2033 20,601 19,159 17,168 15,987 13,647 14,892 15,301 13,696 14,051 24,085 21,667 22,611
e 2034 20,710 19,256 17,254 16,062 13,706 14,960 15,374 13,758 14,113 24,216 21,785 22,735
c 2035 20,798 19,334 17,323 16,121 13,753 15,014 15,433 13,808 14,162 24,322 21,880 22,834
t 2036 20,906 18,853 17,408 16,196 13,813 15,081 15,505 13,868 14,223 24,451 21,996 22,956
e 2037 21,002 19,517 17,486 16,263 13,866 15,140 15,569 13,924 14,278 24,565 22,100 23,065
4 2038 21,123 19,626 17,682 16,348 13,933 15,216 15,651 13,993 14,349 24,708 22,229 23,201
2039 21,220 19,713 17,658 16,416 13,987 15,276 15,715 14,048 14,404 24,823 22,333 23,309
2040 21,346 19,237 17,761 16,506 14,058 15,356 15,800 14,121 14,478 24,970 22,467 23,451
2041 21,447 19,919 17,841 16,577 14,115 15,419 15,867 14,179 14,537 25,089 22,575 23,564
2042 21,550 20,012 17,924 16,650 14,172 15,484 15,936 14,237 14,597 25,210 22,685 23,680
2043 21,675 20,125 18,024 16,738 14,243 15,563 16,020 14,309 14,670 25,357 22,818 23,820
2044 21,777 19,613 18,106 16,810 14,300 15,626 16,088 14,367 14,729 25477 22,927 23,934
2045 21,899 20,328 18,204 16,897 14,369 15,703 16,170 14,437 14,801 25,620 23,057 24,071
2046 22,021 20,439 18,302 16,984 14,438 15,780 16,252 14,507 14,872 25,763 23,187 24,208
2047 22,123 20,530 18,383 17,055 14,494 15,844 16,320 14,565 14,831 25,882 23,295 24,321
2048 22,244 20,021 18,480 17,141 14,562 15,920 16,401 14,635 15,002 26,024 23,424 24,457
2049 22,382 20,765 18,591 17,239 14,640 16,007 16,493 14,714 15,083 26,186 23,571 24,611
2050 22,502 20,873 18,687 17,324 14,708 16,082 16,574 14,783 15,153 26,327 23,699 24,746

Total
101,369
104,628
104,597

99,499
100,966
113,689
111,176
114,616
134,858
139,012
131,497
131,853
126,314
158,251
162,657
158,142
155,758
176,734
184,293
194,213
188,640
198,382
200,133
201,803
202,335
203,855
205,189
206,474
207,032
209,307
210,135
210,839
211,562
212,865
213,930
214,783
215,258
216,776
217,960
218,905
219,551
221,129
222,137
223,363
223,753
225,556
226,753
227,743
228,309
230,280
231,456

38



Traverse Electric Cooperative

Energy Purchases

MWh

Projected

Historical

0s0¢

80¢C

14114

(4414

(44014

ovoz

8€0C

9802

vE0C

[4014

0eotc

870C

970¢

{744

[44114

(7414

8107

910¢

v10c

210t

otoc

800¢

900¢

v00¢

00t

18,000 -

16,000 -

14,000 -

12,000 -

10,000 -

8,000 -

6,000 -

4,000 -

2,000 -

000t

39



Traverse Electric Cooperative

Energy Purchases (MWh)
Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2000 6,531 5,240 4,661 4417 3,790 3,990 4,862 4,946 3,813 6,084 5,629 7,136 61,099
2001 6,181 5,675 5,151 4,232 3,642 3,872 4,615 4,602 3,336 6,033 5,850 5,991 59,180
2002 5,821 4,606 5,683 4,565 4,214 4,012 4,784 4,798 3,679 6,935 6,872 6,152 62,121
2003 6,238 5431 5,257 4,025 3,597 3,495 4,226 4,640 3,674 5,982 5,443 6,063 68,071
H 2004 6,884 5,826 5,086 3,888 3,635 3,350 3,900 4,099 3,619 5,101 7,295 7,683 60,366
j 2005 7,204 5,526 5,587 4,536 4,037 4,072 4,689 4,350 3,599 6,542 6,076 6,051 62,269
s 2006 5,934 5,798 5,420 4,041 3,945 3,798 4,687 4127 3,625 7,102 6,868 6,516 61,761
t 2007 6,897 6,432 5,275 4,606 3,710 3,888 4,562 4,052 3,735 6,939 7,139 7,521 64,756
o 2008 7,689 7,038 6,417 5,139 4,391 4,336 5,163 5,432 4,408 6,896 10,409 9,490 76,808
r 2009 9,043 7,242 7,145 5,827 5,346 4,844 5,176 5,310 4914 6,559 10,868 10,676 82,950
i 2010 8,896 7,228 6,608 5,465 5,377 4,923 5,723 5,672 4,459 7463 8,181 9,434 79,429
2011 9,422 7,243 7,250 5,709 5,090 4,798 5,929 5,674 4,746 7,556 7,179 73711 77,967
2012 7,704 6,813 5771 5,089 4,790 5,126 6,312 5,486 5,813 6,959 6,956 8,929 75,748
a 2013 9,432 7,730 7,812 6,474 5,400 5,191 5,953 5,813 5,021 9,374 11,417 10,869 90,486
! 2014 10,448 9,118 8,588 7174 6,476 6,008 5,986 5,981 5,670 10,097 11,516 10,108 97,170
2015 10,043 9,311 8,523 7,097 6,655 6,439 7,122 6,760 6,498 10,696 8,598 9,176 96,918
2016 9,947 8,211 7,486 6,814 6,264 6,658 6,910 6,950 6,057 11,590 9,333 11,188 97,408
2017 10,355 7,982 8,674 7,505 7,059 6,976 7,655 6,948 6,647 10,026 12,863 11,358 104,048
2018 10,344 9,620 9,693 8,829 7,751 7,848 8,682 8,366 7,618 13,564 11,511 10,859 114,685
2019 11,428 9,781 9,661 8,434 8,053 8,041 8,858 8,492 7,710 12,888 12,455 12,457 118,258
2020 11,203 9,579 9,525 8,283 8,307 8,277 9,079 8,721 7,955 13,022 12,593 12,593 119,137
2021 11,977 10,338 10,279 9,023 8,666 8,636 9,446 9,084 8,310 13,432 13,001 13,002 125,194
2022 12,008 10,441 10,379 9,105 8,742 8,712 9,532 9,165 8,383 13,566 13,133 13,134 126,390
2023 12,212 10,539 10,472 9,183 8,814 8,783 9,612 9,242 8,451 13,692 13,257 13,259 127,516
2024 12,287 10,602 10,533 9,234 8,861 8,830 9,664 9,292 8,495 13,774 13,338 13,340 128,250
2025 12,365 10,669 10,597 9,287 8,910 8,879 9,719 9,344 8,542 13,859 13,422 13,425 129,018
2026 12,460 10,750 10,674 9,352 8,969 8,938 9,786 9,407 8,599 13,964 13,5625 13,528 129,952
2027 12,550 10,827 10,748 9,413 9,026 8,995 9,849 9,467 8,652 14,063 13,623 13,627 130,840
2028 12,628 10,893 10,812 9,467 9,075 9,043 9,904 9,519 8,699 14,149 13,707 13,712 131,608
2029 12,742 10,991 10,805 9,545 9,147 9,115 9,984 9,596 8,767 14,275 13,831 13,836 132,734
p 2030 12,814 11,052 10,964 9,593 9,192 9,160 10,035 9,644 8,810 14,354 13,909 13,914 133,441
r 2031 12,876 11,105 11,015 9,636 9,231 9,199 10,078 9,685 8,847 14,423 13,977 13,983 134,055
- 2032 12,972 11,187 11,094 9,702 9,292 9,259 10,146 9,750 8,904 14,529 14,081 14,087 135,003
2033 13,033 11,239 11,143 9,743 9,330 9,297 10,189 9,790 8,941 14,5985 14,147 14,1563 135,600
i 2034 13,112 11,307 11,208 9,797 9,380 9,347 10,245 9,843 8,988 14,683 14,233 14,240 136,383
o 2035 13,177 11,363 11,262 9,842 9,421 9,388 10,280 9,887 9,027 14,755 14,303 14,311 137,026
2036 13,253 11,428 11,324 9,893 9,468 9,435 10,344 9,938 9,072 14,838 14,386 14,394 137,773
Y 2037 13,321 11,486 11,379 9,940 9,511 9,478 10,392 9,983 9,113 14,913 14,460 14,468 138,444
€ 2038 13,403 11,556 11,447 9,996 9,563 9,529 10,449 10,038 9,162 15,004 14,549 14,558 139,254
d 2039 13,470 11,613 11,501 10,041 9,605 9,571 10,496 10,083 9,202 15,078 14,621 14,631 139,912
2040 13,5563 11,684 11,569 10,098 9,657 9,623 10,555 10,138 9,251 15,169 14,711 14,721 140,729
2041 13,621 11,742 11,628 10,144 9,700 9,666 10,602 10,184 9,292 15,244 14,785 14,795 141,400
2042 13,691 11,801 11,682 10,192 9,743 9,709 10,651 10,230 9,333 15,320 14,860 14,871 142,083
2043 13,773 11,871 11,749 10,248 9,795 9,761 10,709 10,285 9,382 15,411 14,949 14,961 142,894
2044 13,841 11,930 11,805 10,295 9,838 9,804 10,757 10,331 9,423 15,487 15,024 15,035 143,570
2045 13,922 11,999 11,871 10,350 9,889 9,854 10,814 10,385 9,472 15,576 15,111 15,124 144,367
2046 14,003 12,068 11,937 10,405 9,940 9,905 10,871 10,439 9,520 15,665 15,199 15,212 145,164
2047 14,072 12,126 11,993 10,451 9,983 9,948 10,919 10,485 9,561 15,740 15,273 15,286 145,837
2048 14,152 12,195 12,059 10,506 10,033 9,998 10,975 10,538 9,608 15,828 15,360 15,374 146,626
2049 14,242 12,272 12,133 10,568 10,080 10,055 11,039 10,599 9,662 15,928 15,458 15,472 147,518
2050 14,322 12,340 12,198 10,622 10,140 10,104 11,095 10,652 9,710 16,016 15,545 15,559 148,303

40



	Agenda
	July 23, 2019 board meeting minutes
	July 2019 Check Register
	Office Manager's Report
	July Financial Reports
	July 2019 Comparison
	Basin July 2019 Statement of Operations
	Operations Report
	July 2019 Outage Report
	East River Outages
	Safety Playbook samples
	July 2019 Board Safety Report
	Policy 509 Nepotism
	2020 Basin Load Forecast Resolution
	2020 Basin Load Forecast

